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DLF& 

NOTICE 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 24th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) OF 

THE MEMBERS OF DLF EMPORIO LIMITED ('THE COMPANY') WILL BE HELD ON 

TUESDAY, 1st AUGUST 2023 AT 15:00 HRS. (1ST) AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF 

. THE COMPANY AT SHOPPING MALL, PHASE-I, DLF CITY, GURUGRAM-122 002 

HARYANA TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of

the Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2023 together

with the Reports of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Giri Raj Shah (DIN: 03436135), who

retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

3. Appointment of Mr. Debaraj Sahoo as Director, liable to retire by

rotation

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), 

the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and all other 

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 

rules made thereunder (including any statutory amendment(s), 

modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) 

['the Act'], Mr. Debaraj Sahoo (DIN: 08259815), who was appointed by 

the Board of Directors as an Additional Director of the Company w.e.f. 

22nd February 2023, and who holds office up to the date of this Annual 

General Meeting, in terms of Section 161 of the Act read with the 

Articles of Association of the Company and in respect of whom, the 

Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Act 

from a member proposing his candidature for the office of a Director 

Regd. Office: Shopping Mall, Phase-I, DLF City, Gurugram-122 002, Haryana, India 
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of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the 

Company, liable to retire by rotation. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and 

is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds and things, as it may, 

in its absolute discretion, consider necessary, expedient or desirable 

including power to sub-delegate, in order to give effect to this 

resolution." 

4. Approval for appointment of Mr. Gautam Handa as Manager of the

Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), 

the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 2(53), 196, 203 
read with Schedule V and/or any other applicable provisions, if any, of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including 
any statutory amendment(s), modification(s) or re-enactment thereof 

for the time being in force) ('the Act'), and such other approvals, 
consents and permissions, as may be necessary, the consent of the 
Company be and is hereby accorded to appoint Mr. Gautam Handa 

(DIN: 10055143), as Manager of the· Company for a period of 5 (five) 
consecutive years w.e.f. 1st March 2023, without any remuneration. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in terms of Section 2(53) of the Act, 

Mr. Gautam Handa, Manager, subject to the superintendence, control 
and direction of the Board of Directors shall have the management of 
whole or substantially the whole of the affairs of the Company. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in terms of the provisions of Section 2(51) and 
203 of the Act, Mr. Gautam Handa, Manager, be designated as Key 
Managerial Personnel w.e.f. 1st March 2023 to perform such functions 
as may be necessary under the Act or assigned to him by the Board of 
Directors from time to time. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors, be and is hereby 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things including entering into 

such agreement(s), deed(s) or any such document(s) as the Board of 
Directors may, in its absolute discretion, consider necessary, expedient 
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or desirable including to sub-delegate all or any of the powers herein 
conferred on it, in order to give effect to this resolution or as otherwise 

considered necessary by the Board of Directors to be in the best 

interest of the Company.II 

Date: 08.05.2023 
Place: Gurugram 

NOTES: 

By order of the Board of Directors 
For DLF Emporio L" 

Pushpa Bector 
Director 

DIN:02917318 

� � i� 

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO

APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON POLL

INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/ HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER

OF THE COMPANY. THE ENCLOSED PROXY FORM, IF INTENDED TO BE

USED SHOULD REACH THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY DULY

COMPLETED, STAMPED AND SIGNED NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS

BEFORE THE TIME FIXED FOR THE MEETING.

2. The Statement pursuant to Section l 02 of the Act setting out the

material facts concerning the special business under Item No.s 3 & 4 of

the Notice is annexed hereto and forms part of this Notice.

3. The details of Director and Manager seeking appointment/ re­

appointment, in terms of the Act (including Secretarial Standard-2) are

annexed hereto and form part of this Notice.

4. Relevant documents, if any, and statutory registers will be open for

inspection at the Registered Office of the Company on all working

days up to the date of the AGM and will also be available for

inspection at the AGM.
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5. Corporate member intending to send its authorised representative(s)

to attend the meeting are requested to send a certified copy of Board

Resolution authorizing its representative to attend and vote on its

behalf at the AGM.

6. In terms of the Articles of Association, the facility for voting through

polling paper in terms of Section 109 of the Act and the rules made

thereunder shall be made available at the AGM.

7. The Company has appointed Mr. Ramit Rastogi, Company Secretary

in whole time practice as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the polling process in

fair and transparent manner. Mr. Rastogi has given his consent for such

appointment.

8. The Company, being a wholly-owned subsidiary of DLF Cyber City

Developers Limited, route map of the venue of the Meeting and

prominent landmark as per Secretarial Standard-2 on General

Meetings have not been provided.

9. Members are requested to quote their DP ID-Client ID and email-id,

telephone/ mobile no. in all their correspondences.
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CIN: U7 4920HR1999PLC034168; E-mail: dlfemporio@dlf.in; Website: www.dlfemporio.com 

         5



6

DLF Emporio Limited 
11 th Floor, Gateway Tower, 
DLF City, Phase-Ill, Gurugram- 122 002, 
Haryana, India 
Tel. : (+91-124) 456 8900 

Statement 
(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013) 

Item No. 3 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with the rules made thereunder ('the Act') and the Articles of Association of 
the Company, Mr. Debaraj Sahoo (DIN: 08259815), was appointed as an 
Additional Director of the Company w.e.f. 22nd February 2023. Accordingly, 

he shall hold office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting (AGM). 

The Company has received a notice in writing under the provisions of Section 
1 60 of the Act from a member proposing the candidature of Mr. Debaraj 
Sahoo, for the office of Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation. 

Mr. Sahoo has given a declaration to the effect that he is not disqualified 
from being appointed as Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and has 
given his consent to act as a Director in accordance with Section 152 of the 
Act. 

Brief resume of Mr. Sahoo and nature of his expertise in specific functional 
areas along with details in terms of the provisions of the Act (including 

Secretarial Standard-2) are given hereunder: 

Age: 47 Years 
Qualifications: Mr. Debaraj Sahoo, a fellow member of Institute 

of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI), MBA 
(Finance) and a law graduate. 

Experience: Mr. Debaraj Sahoo has an experience of more 
than two decades in Secretarial, Corporate 
Finance and Legal compliances. 

Terms and Conditions of Director, liable to retire by rotation. 
Appointment: 

Details of remuneration N.A. 
sought to be paid, if any: 
Details of the remuneration He has not drawn any remuneration from the 
last drawn: Company. 
Date of first appointment on 22nd February 2023 

Regd. Office: Shopping Mall, Phase-I, DLF City, Gurugram-122 002, Haryana, India 
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the Board: 
Shareholding in 
Company: 

Relationship with other 

the 

Directors and other KMP(s): 
Number of Board Meetings 
attended during the 
financial year 2022-23: 
Other Directorship(s): 

Committee Positions in other 
companies: 

Mr. Debaraj Sahoo holds l (one) equity share in 
the Company as nominee of DLF Cyber City 
Developers Limited, holding company. 
NIL 

l out of l 

l. DLF Lands India Private Limited; and 
2. Riveria Commercial Developers Limited. 
NIL 

Mr. Debaraj Sahoo, being the appointee and his relatives are deemed to be 
interested in the resolution as set-out at item no. 3 of the Notice. Save and 
except the above, none of the other Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
of the Company and/ or their respective relatives, in any way, are 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set-out 
above. 

The Board commends the resolution for approval of the members as an 
Ordinary Resolution. 

Item No. 4 

Members may kindly note that consequent to the resignation of Mr. Prashant 
Gaurav Gupta as Manager of the Company, with effect from 23rd February 
2023, the Company is required to appoint a Manager in terms of the 
provisions of Section 2(51 ), 2(53), 196, 203, Schedule V and/ or any other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made 
thereunder ( 'the Act'). Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Company 
at their meeting held on 22nd February 2023, had subject to approval of 
members, appointed Mr. Gautam Honda as Manager of the Company for a 
period of 5 (five) consecutive years with the effect from l51 March 2023, 
without any remuneration. 

Mr. Gautam Honda has not incurred any disqualifications under Section 
196(3) of the Act. Further, pursuant to the provisions of Part I to Schedule V of 

Regd. Office: Shopping Mall, Phase-I, DLF City, Gurugram-122 002, Haryana, India 
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DLF4.+ .. 

the Act, he is eligible for appointment as a Manager of the Company and 
has given his consent for the same. 

In terms of the provisions of Section 2(53) of the Act, Mr. Gautam Honda, 
subject to the superintendence, control and direction of the Board shall 
have the management of the whole, or substantially the whole, of the affairs 
of the Company. 

In terms of the provisions of Section 2(51) of the Act, Mr. Gautam Honda may 
be designated as Key Managerial Personnel and shall perform such functions 
as may be necessary under the Act or rules made thereunder or assigned to 
him by the Board of Directors from time to time. 

Brief resume of Mr. Gautam Honda and nature of his expertise in specific 
functional areas along with details in terms of the provisions of the Act 
(including Secretarial Standard-2) are given hereunder: 

Name: Mr. Gautam Honda 

Age: 39 Years 

Qualifications: Mr. Gautam Honda holds bachelor's degree 
in hospitality management and certificate 
program in Hotel Revenue Management. 

Experience: Mr. Gautam Honda has rich experience of 
more than 18 years in Core Property 
Operations, Business Development and 
Guest Relationship Management. His last 
assignment was with W Goa as Director of 
Rooms, handling different performance 
areas under hospitality management. 

Terms and Conditions of Appointment is for a period of 5 (five) 
Appointment: consecutive years i.e., from 1st March 2023 to 

291h February 2028. 
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Details of remuneration 
sought to be paid, if any: 

Details of the 
remuneration last drawn: 

Date of first appointment 
on the Board: 

Shareholding in the 
Company: 

Relationship with other 
Directors and other 
KMP(s): 

Number of Board 
Meetings attended during 
the financial year 
2022-23: 

Other Directorship(s): 

Committee Positions in 
other companies: 

N.A. 

He has not drawn any remuneration from the 
Company. 

1st March 2023 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

Mr. Gautam Honda, being the appointee and his relatives are deemed to 
be interested in the resolution as set-out at item no. 4 of the Notice. Save and 
except the above, none of the other Directors of the Company and/ or their 
respective relatives, in any way, are concerned or interested, financially or 
otherwise, in the resolution set-out above. 

Regd. Office: Shopping Mall, Phase-I, DLF City, Gurugram-122 002, Haryana, India 
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DLF.Ii. 

The Board commends the resolution for approval of the members as an 
Ordinary Resolution. 

Date: 08.05.2023 
Place: Gurugram 

By order of the Board of Directors 
For DLF Emporio L" It 

Pushpa Bector 
Director 

DIN: 02917318 0 
~\)', :f {'6V)\ 
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FORM NO. MGT-11 
PROXY FORM 

[Pursuant to Section 105( 6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) 
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

24rd Annual General Meeting - Tuesday, 1st August 2023 at 15.00 Hrs. (1ST) 

CIN: U74920HR1999PLC034168 

Name of the company: DLF Emporio Limited 

Registered office: Shopping Mall, Phase-I, DLF City, Gurugram-122002, 
Haryana 

Name of the Email id: 
Member(s): Folio No./ Client Id*: 
Registered Address: DP Id*: 

I/ We, being the member(s) holding ................... Shares of the above-
named Company, hereby appoint 

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

Name: 
Address: 
E-mail ID: 
Signature: 

or failinq him/her; 
Name: 
Address: 
E-mail ID: 
Signature: 

or failinq him/her; 
Name: 
Address: 
E-mail ID: 
Signature: 

Regd. Office: Shopping Mall, Phase-I, DLF City, Gurugram-122 002, Haryana, India 
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as my/ our proxy to attend and vote for me/ us and on my/ our behalf at the 
24th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 
1st August 2023 at 15:00 Hrs. (1ST) at the registered office of the Company at 
Shopping Mall, Phase-I, DLF City, Gurugram-122002, Haryana and at any 
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolution(s) as are indicated below: 

Resl. Resolution(s) 
No. 

1. Adoption of Audited Financial 
Statement, Directors' Report and 
Auditors' Report for the financial year 
ended on 31 st March 2023 

2. Re-appointment of Mr. Giri Raj Shah, 
Director (DIN: 03436135), who retires by 
rotation 

3. Appointment of Mr. Debaraj Sahoo (DIN: 
08259815) as Director of the Company, 
liable to retire by rotation 

4. Appointment of Mr. Gautam Honda 
(DIN:10055143), as Manager of the 
Company 

Signed this ....... Day of _2023 

Signature of member 

Signature of Proxy holder (s) 

Notes: 

For# Against# Abstained# 

AFFIX 
REVENUE 

STAMP OF 
APPROPRIATE 

VALUE 

1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited 
at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the 
commencement the meeting. 

2) A Proxy need not be a member of the Company. 

3) A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding 
in the aggregate not more than l 0% of the total share capital of the Company 
carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of 
the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such 
person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. 

4) #This is optional. Please put 'x' or' ✓' in the appropriate column against the resolution 
indicated in the Box. If you leave 'For' or 'Against' or 'Abstain' column blank against 
the resolution, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/ she deems 
appropriate. 

Regd. Office: Shopping Mall, Phase-I, DLF City, Gurugram-122 002, Haryana, India 
CIN: U74920HR1999PLC034168; E-mail: dlfemporio@dlf.in; Website: www.dlfemporio.com 



13

DLF Emporio Limited 
11 th Floor, Gateway Tower, 
DLF City, Phase-Ill, Gurugram- 122 002, 
Haryana, India 
Tel. : (+91-124) 456 8900 

5) Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in 
person, if he/ she so desire. 
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CIN: U74920HR1999PLC034168; E-mail: dlfemporio@dlf.in; Website: www.dlfemporio.com 



14

DLF Emporio Limited 
11 th Floor, Gateway Tower, 
DLF City, Phase-Ill, Gurugram- 122 002, 
Haryana, India 
Tel. : (+91-124) 456 8900 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

24th Annual General Meeting - Tuesday, 1st August 2023 at 15:00 Hrs. (1ST) 

1. Full Name and Registered 
Address of the Member 
(in BLOCK LETTERS) 

2. Full Name of the Proxy . 
(in BLOCK LETTERS) 

3. DP ID - Client ID 

4. No. of Equity Share(s) held 

If We, being the Registered Shareholder/ Proxy for the Registered 
Shareholder* of the Company, hereby record my/ our presence at 
24th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 
1st August 2023 at 15:00 Hrs. (1ST) at the registered office of the Company at 
Shopping Mall, Phase-I, DLF City, Gurugram-122002, Haryana and at any 
adjournment(s) thereof. 

Member's/ Proxy's Signature 

*Strike off whichever is not relevant 

Regd. Office: Shopping Mall, Phase-I, DLF City, Gurugram-122 002, Haryana, India 
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Details of the Director seeking re-appointment at the AGM 

Name: Mr. Giri Raj Shah 
DIN: 03436135 
Age: 64 Years 
Qualifications: Graduated in Architecture from Sir J.J. College 

of Architecture, Mumbai. 
Experience: Mr. Shah started his career with Consulting 

Engineering Services Pvt. Ltd. (CSE) in the Year 
1982 and was associated with them till 1992. 
During his tenure with CES, he worked 
extensively on project based in Muscat, 
Sultanate of Oman, and was posted there 
between 1984 to 1991. Between 1992 and 
1995 he worked with DLF Limited and was 
associated with their premium residential 
projects- Beverly Parks 1 & 2 and development 
of DLF Phase 5. He rejoined DLF in 2004 and has 
been associated in the development of all 
Retail and Commercial complexes ever since. 

Terms and Conditions of Director, liable to retire by rotation 
Re-appointment: 
Details of remuneration sought NIL 
to be paid, if any: 
Details of the remuneration last He has not drawn any remuneration from 
drawn: the Company. 
Date of first appointment on the 23rd July 2019 
Board: 
Shareholding in the Company: NIL 
Relationship with other NIL 
Directors, Manager and other 
KMP(s): 
Number of Board Meetings 6 out of 6 
attended during the financial 
year 2022-23: 
Other Directorship(s): 1. DLF Promenade Limited 

2. DLF Info Park(Pune) Limited 
3. Paliwal Real Estate Limited 

Committee Positions in other Corporate Social Responsibility 
companies: Committee 

DLF Promenade Limited (Member) 

Regd. Office: Shopping Mall, Phase-I, DLF City, Gurugram-122 002, Haryana, India 
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To the Members, 

DIRECTORS' REPORT 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 24th Annual Report on 
the business and operations of the Company together with the 
audited financial statement for the financial year ended 31 st March 
2023. 

Financial Performance 

The financial performance of the Company for the financial year 
ended 31 st March 2023 is as under: 

(tin lakh) 
2022-23 2021-22 

Total income 18,435.30 13,111.10 
Total expenses 7,214.47 7,024.76 
Profit before exceptional items and tax 11,220.83 6,086.34 
Exceptional items (net) - -
Profit before tax 11,220.83 6,086.34 
Less: Tax expenses 2,401.02 1,504.30 
Profit after tax 8,819.81 4,582.04 
Other Comprehensive Income 9,210.97 638.22 
Total Comprehensive Income 18,030.78 5,220.26 

Review of Operations 

During the financial year 2022-23, total income of the Company has 
increased from t 13, 11 l. l O lakh (previous year) to ~ 18,435.30 lakh 
( current year), mainly due to increase in revenue from operations. The 
expenses of the Company have increased from t 7,024.76 lakh 
(previous year) tot 7,214.47 lakh (current year) due to increase in cost 
of facility maintenance and development expenses and other 
expenses. The net profit ( after tax) for the year stood at t 8,819.81 lakh 
(current year) as against t 4,582.04 lakh (previous year). The total 
comprehensive income for the year was increased from t 5,220.26 
lakh (previous year) to t 18,030.78 lakh (current year). The basic and 
diluted EPS for the financial year 2022-23 stood at t 189 .86 as 
compared to t 92.51 in the previous year. 

About DLF Emporio Mall: India's first and finest Luxury Shopping 
Destination 

DLF Emporia is a name truly synonymous with luxury. Exclusivity, 
ambient spaces, state of the art unparalleled luxury retail and 
hospitality experiences and uber luxe aesthetics are the signatures of 
this spectacular offering. An environment that ensconces the best of 

Regd. Office: Shopping Mall, Phase-I, DLF City, Gurugram, Haryana-122 002, India 
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DLF~IJ. 

global and Indian luxury brands, DLF Emporia is a heaven for luxury 
shoppers across India since only the finest signature brands, designer 
labels and high-end lifestyle products co-exist here. 

A forerunner and a pioneer in the Indian Luxury Retail space, DLF 
Emporia is solely responsible for putting India on the global luxury map. 

Known for creating unique and discerning luxury experiences and 

offering best in class luxury services, DLF Emporia has always created 

benchmarks in excellence. As a validation of its distinction, DLF 

Emporia has been adjudged with "WELL Health-Safety Rating" at the 

"International WELL Building Institute", "Sword of Honour Awards" by an 

independent jury appointed by the British Safety Council, "LEED Zero 

Water" certification from USGBC for DLF Emporia Mall from USGBC/ 

GBCI, "Most Admired Shopping Centre Company of the Year" award 

by MAPIC India 2022, Five Star certifications in a comprehensive Five 

Star Occupational Health & Safety Audit conducted by British Safety 
Council in 2022. 

Future Outlook 

As we move towards the year 2023, India's status as a global 
economic power is becoming increasingly apparent. India's luxury 
market is one of the fastest growing in the world, and is expected to 
double in next 5 years from $ 2.5 billion to $ 5 billion. A combination of 
factors, including a growing middle class, increasing disposable 
incomes, and changing consumer attitudes towards luxury goods, are 
driving the growth of the luxury market in India. 

One of the key drivers of India's luxury market is the country's growing 
middle class. Over the past decade, India has experienced a 
significant increase in urbanization, with more and more people 
moving from rural areas to cities in search of better job opportunities 
and a higher standard of living. As a result, the middle class has 
become an important consumer segment for luxury brands. According 
to a recent study, India's middle class is set to grow to 580 million 
people by 2025, up from 267 million in 2017. This growth in the middle 
class is expected to fuel demand for high-end luxury goods, including 
cars, jewelry and watches, and designer clothing. 

Another key factor driving India's luxury market is increasing disposable 
incomes. As the Indian economy continues to grow, more and more 
people are able to afford luxury goods. According to a report by 
McKinsey, the number of affluent Indian households - those with an 
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annual income of over $100,000 - is set to triple to 21 million by 2025. 
This increase in disposable incomes is expected to drive demand for 
luxury goods, particularly in categories such as fashion and 
accessories, beauty and personal care, and travel and hospitality. 

In addition to the above reasons, changing consumer attitudes 
towards luxury goods are also driving the growth of India's luxury 
market. However, the younger generation of Indians is increasingly 
drawn to Western luxury brands, which they see as more aspirational. 
This trend is particularly evident in the fashion and beauty categories, 
where Western brands such as Louis Vuitton, Gucci, and Dior have 
seen significant growth in recent years. 

Looking ahead to 2023 and beyond, India's luxury market is poised for 
further growth. Overall, DLF Emporia a place which harbors many such 
luxury brands shall continue to remain as a first choice for Indian 
consumers to aspire and be a part of our legacy by shopping with us. 

Dividend 

Your Board of Directors in order to conserve the resources of the 
Company for the future development and growth have not declared 
any dividend on equity shares during the financial year under review. 

Reserves 

Your Directors do not propose to transfer any amount to General 
Reserve during the financial year under review. 

Material Changes and Commitment 

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the 
financial position of your Company which have occurred between the 
end of the financial year to which the financial statement relates and 
the date of this Report. 

Changes in the nature of Business 

There has been no change in the nature of business during the 
financial year under review. 

Share Capital 

During the financial year under review, there was no change in the 
share capital of the company. 
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Public Deposits 

Your Company has neither invited nor accepted/ renewed any public 
deposits during the financial year under review. 

Holding Company 

DLF Cyber City Developers Limited (DCCDL) and DLF Limited continue 
to be the holding Companies and Rajdhani Investments & Agencies 
Private Limited is the ultimate holding company of your Company. 

Subsidiary(ies)/Associate Companies/Joint Ventures 

During the financial year ended 31 st March 2023, your Company does 
not have any subsidiary(ies)/ associate company(ies)/ joint venture(s). 
Therefore, the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 
('the Act') and the rules made thereunder do not apply. 

Scheme of Amalgamation/ Arrangement 

During the financial year under review, a Composite Scheme of 
Arrangement ('the Scheme'), involving (a) merger/ amalgamation of 
DLF City Centre Limited, DLF Lands India Private Limited, DLF Info City 
Developers (Kolkata) Limited, DLF Emporia Limited into and with DLF 
Cyber City Developers Limited ('DCCDL'); and (b) demerger and 
vesting of SEZ Undertakings of DLF Assets Limited situated at Silokhera, 
Hyderabad and Chennai ('SEZ Undertakings') into DCCDL (hereinafter 
referred to as the 'Applicant Companies'), was approved by the 
Board of Directors in its meeting held on 21 st July 2022, in respect of 
which first motion application was jointly filed by the Applicant 
Companies with the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, 
Chandigarh ('NCLT') on 24th February 2023. The matter was heard on 
14th March 2023 and is pending before Hon'ble NCLT. The appointed 
date as per the Scheme is opening hours of l st April 2022. 

Directors' Responsibility Statement 

In terms of the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Act, your Directors 
confirm that-

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable 
accounting standards had been followed along with proper 
explanation relating to material departures; 
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DI.F ... 6. 

(b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them 
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year 
and of the profit of the Company for that period; 

(c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

( d) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern 
basis; and 

(e) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the 
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems are 
adequate and operating effectively. 

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange 
Earnings and Outgo 

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption 
and foreign exchange earnings and outgo, as stipulated under 
Section 134(3) (m) of the Act read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended, are given at Annexure-A hereto 
and form part of this Report. 

Secretarial Standards 

During the financial year under review, your Company has followed 
the applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to 
'Meetings of the Board of Directors' and 'General Meetings' issued by 
the Council of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and 
approved by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 

Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

As on the date of this report, the Board comprises three Non-executive 
Directors. The composition of the Board of Directors is in conformity 
with the provisions of the Act. 

During the financial year under review, the Board of Directors had 
appointed Ms. Pushpa Bedor (DIN: 02917318) as an Additional 
Director of the Company w.e.f. 1st June 2022. Further, the shareholders 
at the Annual General meeting held on 5th August 2022 confirmed her 
appointment as Director, liable to retire by rotation. 
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During the financial year under review, Mr. Yogendra Negi (DIN: 
08565147) has resigned from the directorship of the Company w.e.f. 
4th June 2022. Mr. Prashant Gaurav Gupta {DIN: 07951272) has 
resigned from the directorship and from the position of the Manager of 
the Company w.e.f. 23rd February 2023. 

During the financial year under review, the Board of Directors has 
appointed Mr. Debaraj Sahoo (DIN: 08259815) as an Additional 
Director of the Company w.e.f. 22nd February 2023. As an Additional 
Director, Mr. Debaraj Sahoo will hold office till the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting. The resolution pertaining to the appointment of 
Mr. Debaraj Sahoo as Director, liable to retire by rotation is being 
placed before the members for their approval in the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting of the Company. 

The Company has received the requisite notice from a member in 
writing, proposing the candidature of Mr. Debaraj Sahoo as a Director, 
liable to retire by rotation. 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 152 of the Act and in accordance 
with the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Giri Raj Shah 
(DIN: 0343135), Director is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offered himself for re­
appointment. The resolution seeking members' approval for his re­
appointment form part of the Notice for convening Annual General 
Meeting. 

A brief resume of the Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment, 
along with other details, as stipulated in the Secretarial Standard on 
General Meetings, is provided in the Notice for convening Annual 
General Meeting. 

Subsequently, the Board of Directors appointed Mr. Gautam Honda 
has been appointed as Manager of the Company w.e.f. 1st March, 
2023. 

None of the Directors of the Company is disqualified under Section 164 
of the Act. 

Mr. Gautam Honda, Manager, is the Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company in terms of the provisions of the Act. 
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Board Meetings 

During the financial year 2022-23, six Board meetings were held on 
6th May, 19th July, 21 st July, 17th October 2022, 19th January 2023 and 
22nd February 2023, the attendance of which is given as under: 

s. Name of the Directors Position No. of meeting(s) 
No. Held Attended 

during 
tenure 

1. Mr. Prashant Gaurav Director & 6 6 
Gupta Manager 
(Till 22.02.2023) 

2. Mr. Giri Raj Shah Director 6 6 
3. Mr. Yogendra Negi Director 1 l 

(Till 03.06.2022) 
4. Ms. Pushpa Bector Director 5 5 

(w.e.f. 01.06.2022) 
5. Mr. Debaraj Sahoo Director l 1 

(w.e.f. 22.02.2023) 

The maximum interval between any two meetings was 94 days, which 
was in compliance with the provisions of the Act. The requisite quorum 
was present in all the meetings. 

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR Committee} 

During the year under review, the CSR Committee was reconstituted 
w.e.f. 4th June 2022, by inducting Ms. Pushpa Bector as Member in 
place of Mr. Yogendra Negi. The CSR Committee was further 
reconstituted w.e.f. 23rd February 2023, by inducting Mr. Debaraj 
Sahoo as Member in place of Mr. Prashant Gaurav Gupta. As on the 
date of this report, the CSR Committee comprises three Directors. The 
CSR Committee's composition and terms of reference are in 
compliance with provisions of Section 135 of the Act. 

During the financial year under review, two meetings of the CSR 
Committee were held on 6th May and 17th October 2022, the 
attendance of which is given as under: 

s. Name of the Members Position No. of meeting(s) 
No Held Attended 

during 
tenure 

1. Mr. Giri Raj Shah Chairman 2 2 
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2. Mr. Prashant Gaurav 
Gupta 
(Till 22.02.2023) 

3. Mr. Yogendra Negi (Till 
03.06.2022) 

4. Ms. Pushpa Bector 
(w.e.f. 04.06.2022) 

5. Mr. Debaraj Sahoo 
(w.e.f. 23.02.2023) 

DLF ... 6. 

Member 2 2 

Member 1 1 

Member 1 1 

Member - -

In terms of the provisions of Section 135 of the Act, your Company was 
required to spend an amount of ~ t 147.30 lakh on CSR projects/ 
programmes/ activities for the financial year 2022-23. 

The Board of Directors of the Company, based on the 
recommendation of the CSR Committee, had accorded its approval 
to undertake four long-term project(s)/ programme(s)/ activity(ies) 
('Ongoing/ Multiyear Projects') and it was proposed to contribute an 
amount of ~ t 92.61 Lakh to DLF Foundation and ~ t 54.69 lakh to Lal 
Chand Public Charitable Trust [aggregating to ~ t 147.30 lakh], in one 
or more tranches. The Board has also approved an annual action plan 
for the financial year 2022-23 in compliance with the provisions of 
Section 135 of the Act read with rules made thereunder. A copy of the 
corporate social responsibility policy and the annual action plan is 
available at www.dlfemporio.com. 

There has been no expenditure during the financial year 2022-23, 
accordingly the entire amount of~ t 147.30 lakh has been transferred 
to a separate bank account (unspent CSR account) in compliance 
to the provisions of Section 135(6) of the Act. Since, the Company 
has undertaken four Ongoing/ Multiyear Projects, the unspent 
amount of t 147 .30 lakh is required to be spent by the Company by 
31 st March 2026 in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

The Annual Report on CSR activities, as per the prescribed format 
under the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 
2014, as amended, is at Annexure-B. 

Vigil Mechanism 

Pursuant to Section 177 of the Act, the Company has in place a Vigil 
Mechanism policy namely 'DLF Emporio Limited - Vigil Mechanism' for 
establishing a vigil mechanism for Directors and employees to report 
instances of unethical and/ or improper conduct and to take suitable 
steps to investigate and correct the same. Directors, employees, 
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vendors, customers or any person having dealings with the Company 
may report non-compliance of the policy to the noticed persons. 

Mr. Giri Raj Shah has been authorised to hear the grievances of the 
stakeholders, employees and Directors and take steps, if required to 
resolve the issues amicably/ take appropriate action against the 
employee and make provision for direct access through an email or 
through a letter to Mr. Shah. 

The Directors and management personnel maintain the confidentiality 
of such reporting and ensure that the whistle blowers are not 
subjected to any discrimination. 

The Vigil Mechanism is posted on your Company's website i.e. 
www.dlfemporio.com. 

Auditors and Auditors' Report 

S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP [301003E/ E300005], Chartered Accountants 
were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of 
five consecutive years from the conclusion of 23rd Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) till the conclusion of the 28th AGM of the Company to 
be held in the year 2027. 

The notes on the financial statement referred to in the Auditors' Report 
are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments. The 
Auditors' Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, 
adverse remarks or disclaimer. 

The Emphasis of Matters given in the Auditors' Report on the financial 
statement are self-explanatory and do not call for any further 
comments. 

Cost Records & Audit 

In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, maintenance of 
cost records and appointment of Cost Auditor are not applicable to 
Company for the financial year under review. 

Secretarial Audit 

A.S. & Associates, Company Secretaries in practice was appointed as 
Secretarial Auditor of the Company to conduct Secretarial Audit for 
the financial year 2022-23. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial 
year ended 31 st March 2023 is at Annexure-C. The said Report does 
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not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remarks or 
disclaimer. 

Reporting of Frauds by Auditors 

During the financial year under review, the auditors have not reported 
any instances of fraud committed by the Company or its officers under 
Section 143( 12) of the Act. 

Annual Return 

In accordance with provisions of the Act, a copy of the Annual Return 
for the financial year ended 31 st March 2023 is available on the 
website of the Company at weblink: 

https://www.dlfemporio.com/pdfs/Annual-Return-FY-2022-23.pdf 

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees, Securities and Investments 

Particulars of loans, guarantees, securities and investments, if any, 
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statement. 

Transactions with Related Parties 

The Company has adequate procedures for identification and 
monitoring of related party(ies) and related party transactions. None 
of the transactions with related parties fall under the scope of Section 
188( 1) of the Act. 

The Company's policy for related party transactions regulates the 
transactions between the Company and its related parties. The policy 
intends to ensure that proper reporting, approval and disclosure 
processes are in place for all transactions between the Company and 
its related parties. Information on transaction(s) with related party(ies) 
pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read with Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended, are given in Form 
No. AOC-2 at Annexure-0. 

For details on related party transactions, members may refer to the 
notes to the financial statement. 

Risk Management 

The Board of Directors has oversight in the areas of financial risks and 
control and is also responsible to frame, implement and monitor the 
risk management plan and ensuring its effectiveness. Risks are 
identified through a consistently applied methodology. The Company 
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DLF ... 6. 

has put in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate 
various risks to key business objectives. 

The Statutory Auditors of the Company have reported that the 
Company has adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting. 

Internal Financial Controls and Systems 

Internal financial controls are an integral part of the risk management 
process addressing amongst others financial and non-financial risks. 
The internal financial controls are documented and augmented in the 
day-to-day business processes. Assurance on the effectiveness of 
internal financial controls is obtained through management reviews, 
self-assessment, continuous monitoring by functional experts as well as 
testing by the Statutory/ Internal Auditor during the course of their 
audits. 

The internal audit was entrusted to KPMG Assurance and Consulting 
Services LLP. The main thrust of internal audit was to test and review 
controls, appraisal of risks and business processes, besides 
benchmarking controls with the best industry practices. Further, the 
Board of Directors monitors the adequacy and effectiveness of your 
Company's internal control framework. Significant audit observations 
are followed-up and the actions taken were reported to the Board of 
Directors. 

The Company's internal control system is commensurate with the 
nature, size and complexities of operations. 

Significant and Material Orders passed by Regulators or Courts 

There are no significant material orders passed by the regulators/ 
courts which would impact the going concern status of the Company 
and its future operations. During the financial year under review, 
neither any application is made by the Company nor any proceeding 
is pending against the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy 
Code, 2016. 

Policy on Prohibition, Prevention and Redressal of Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace 

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and 
harassment free workplace for every individual working in the 
Company through various training, awareness and practices. 
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Your Company continues to follow a robust anti-sexual1 policy framed 
by DLF Cyber City Developers Limited("DCCDL), the holding company 
on 'Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace' in accordance with the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 
("POSH") and rules made thereunder. Internal Complaints Committee 
has been set-up by DCCDL to redress complaints received regarding 
sexual harassment at various workplaces in accordance with POSH. 
The Committee constituted in compliance with POSH ensures a free 
and fair enquiry process with clear timelines for resolution. To build 
awareness in this area, the Company has been conducting 
programmes on regular basis. 

All employees of DCCDL including its subsidiaries (permanent, 
contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. The 
policy is gender neutral. 

During the financial year under review, no case was reported. DCCDL 
continues to promote the cause of women colleagues through 
'Jagruti', all-women's forum for experience sharing, creating 
awareness on women's safety/ related issues, celebrating important 
days dedicated to women and organizing workshops on gender 
sensitivity. 

Accolades 

During the year under review, your Company/its Directors have been 
conferred with the following prestigious awards: 

1. "LEED Zero Water" certification from U.S. Green Building Council; 

2. "Most Admired Shopping Centre Company of the Year" award 
by MAPIC India 2022; 

3. Five Star certifications in a comprehensive Five Star 
Occupational Health & Safety Audit conducted by British Safety 
Council in 2022; 

4. "Sword of Honour Award" by an independent jury appointed by 
the British Safety Council for 2022. 

Sword of Honour is the highest global award in the field of 
Occupational Health & Safety, which is awarded to the best of 
the best companies in the world, after they have achieved 'Five 
Star Rating' in Occupational Health & Safety by the British Safety 
Council (BSC). 
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DLF.-

5. Ms. Pushpa Bector, Director of the Company has been 
conferred with the following awards: 

(a) "Most Admired Shopping Centre Personality of the Year" by 
MAPIC India 2022"; 

(b) Women Icon of the Year at ET Business Leadership Awards. 

Acknowledgement 
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stakeholders, most of all our valuable customers. Your Directors would 
like to express their sincere appreciation for assistance and 
co-operation received from the business partners, stakeholders, 
suppliers including financial institutions, banks, Central and State 
Government authorities, customers, tenants and other business 
associates. All of them have extended their valuable and sustained 
support and encouragement during the year under review. It will be 
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stakeholders. 

The Board is deeply grateful and have immense respect for every 
person who risked their life and safety to fight this pandemic. 
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member of the DLF family. 

08.05.2023 
Gurugram 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

~~1/ 
Mr. Debaraj Schoo 

Director 
(DIN: 08259815) 

of DLF Empori ·ted 

P shpa Sector 
Director 

(DIN: 02917318) 
~~ ~? \ 
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ANNEXURE - 'A' 

Particulars required to be disclosed under Section 134(3)(m) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014: 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY: 

(i) The steps taken or impact 1. External lighting on 
on conservation of energy programmable timers for 

efficient operation 
2. Controlling of basement and 

unoccupied area lighting as 
per extant occupancy of 
the area. 

(ii) The steps taken by the Three in nos. electrical vehicle 
Company for utilizing charging (EV) stations installed to 
alternate sources of promote alternate energy options 
energy and facilitate visiting guest 

electrical vehicles. 
(iii) The capital investment on NIL 

energy conservation 
equipment 

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 

(i) The efforts made towards technology NIL 
absorption 

(ii) The benefits derived like product NIL 
improvement, cost reduction, product 
development or import substitution 

(iii) In case of imported technology NIL 
(imported during the last three years 
reckoned from the beginning of the 

. financial year): -
(a)the details of technology imported: 
(b)the year of import: 
(c)whether the technology been fully 
absorbed: 
(d)if not fully absorbed, are as where 
absorption has not taken place, and the 
reasons thereof 

(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and NIL 
Development. 

Regd. Office: Shopping Mall, Phase-I, DLF City, Gurugram, Haryana-122 002, India 
CJN: U74920HR1999PLC034168; E-mail: dlfemporio@dlf.in; Website: www.dlfemporio.com 



30

DLF Emporio Limited 
., 11 th Floor, Gateway Tower, 

DLF City, Phase-III, Gurugram- 122 002, 
Haryana, India 
Tel.: (+91-124) 456 8900 

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

S. No. Particulars 2022-23 
(i) The Foreign Exchange earned NIL 

in terms of actual inflows during 
the year; and 

(ii) The Foreign Exchange outgo NIL 
during the year in terms of 
actual outflows. 

DI.F ... 6. 

(' in Lakh) 
2021-22 

NIL 

NIL 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
of DLF Emporio Limi d 

08.05.2023 
Gurugram 

~ \,~~/ 
\~ 

Mr. Debaraj Sahoo 
Director 

(DIN: 08259815) 

u hpa Bector 
Director 

(DIN: 02917~18) 
1" ~ ~ 
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ANNEXURE - 'A' 

Particulars required to be disclosed under Section 134(3)(m) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014: 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY: 

(i) The steps taken or impact 1. External lighting on 
on conservation of energy programmable timers for 

efficient operation 
2. Controlling of basement and 

unoccupied area lighting as 
per extant occupancy of 
the area. 

(ii) The steps taken by the Three in nos. electrical vehicle 
Company for utilizing charging (EV) stations installed to 
alternate sources of promote alternate energy options 
energy and facilitate visiting guest 

electrical vehicles. 
(iii) The capital investment on NIL 

energy conservation 
equipment 

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 

(i) The efforts made towards technology NIL 
absorption 

(ii) The benefits derived like product NIL 
improvement, cost reduction, product 
development or import substitution 

( iii) In case of imported technology NIL 
(imported during the last three years 
reckoned from the beginning of the 
financial year): -
(a)the details of technology imported: 
(b)the year of import: 
(c)whether the technology been fully 
absorbed: 
(d)if not fully absorbed, are as where 
absorption has not taken place, and the 
reasons thereof 

(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and NIL 
Development. 

Regd. Office: Shopping Mall, Phase-I, DLF City, Gurugram, Haryana-122 002, India 
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C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

S. No. Particulars 2022-23 
(i) The Foreign Exchange earned NIL 

in terms of actual inflows during 
the year; and 

(ii) The Foreign Exchange outgo NIL 
during the year in terms of 
actual outflows. 

DLF .. 

(tin Lakh) 
2021-22 

NIL 

NIL 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
of DLF Emporio Limited 

08.05.2023 
Gurugram 

~~~1/~ 
Mr. Debaraj Sahoo 

Director 
(DIN: 08259815) 

pa Bector 
Director 

(DIN: 02917318) 
•;, f.l. 

~v- 3 "I 
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ANNEXURE - B 

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities for the 
financial year 2022-23 

[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-Section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 of the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014, as amended] 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: 

DLF Emporio Limited has implemented its CSR Activities to integrate economic, 
environmental and social objectives with its operations and growth for common good 
as per Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and any amendments or modifications 
made thereto. 

2. Composition of CSR Committee: 

S. No. Name of Director Designation/ Number of Number of meeting(s) 
Nature of meeting(s) of CSR of CSR Committee 
Directorship Committee held attended during 

during the year* year 
1. Mr. Giri Raj Shah Non- 2 2 

(Chairman) Executive 
Director 

2. Mr. Yogendra Negi Non-Executive 1 1 
(Till 03.06.2022) Director 

3. Mr. Prashant Gaurav Non-Executive 2 2 
Gupta Director & 
(Member) Manager 
'Till 22.02.2023) 

4. Ms. Pushpa Bector Non-Exceutive 1 1 
(Member) Director 
w.e.f. 04.06.2022) 

5. Mr. Debaraj Sahoo Non-Exceutive -** -
(Member) Director 
(w.e.f. 23.02.2023) 

* Number of meeting(s) held during the tenure of the respective member has been 
mentioned. 

** No CSR Committee meetings were held during the tenure of Mr. Debaraj Sahoo, 
Member. 

Regd. Office: Shopping Mall, Phase-I, DLF City, Gurugram, Haryana-122 002, India 
CIN: U74920HR1999PLC034168; E-mail: dlfemporio@dlf.in; Website: www.dlfemporio.com 
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DL~ 

3. Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and 
CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the 
company: 

The composition of the CSR Committee can be viewed at 
https://www.dlfemporio.com/investors/constitution of corporate social responsibility 
committee; 

The CSR Policy approved by the Board can be viewed at 
https://www.dlfemporio.com/investors/policies; and 

The CSR projects approved by the Board can be viewed at 
https://www.dlfemporio.com/pdfs/Emporio Annual-action-plan.pdf 

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of 
CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies 
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable: 

Not Applicable for the financial year 2022-23. 

5(a). Average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5): 

, 7,365 lakh 

(b ). Two percent of average net profit of the company as per Section 135( 5): 

t 147.30 lakh 

( c ). Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 
financial years: 

Nil. However, the Company has earned interest of t 3.03 lakh on the unspent 
CSR Ale for the financial year 2021-22. 

(d). Amount required to be set off for the financial year 2022-23, if any: 

NIL 

(e). Total CSR obligation for the financial year 2022-23 [(5(b)+5(c)-5(d)]: 

t 147.30 lakh 

Regd. Office: Shopping Mall, Phase-I, DLF City, Gurugram, Haryana-122 002, India 
GIN: U74920HR1999PLC034168; E-mail: dlfemporio@dlf.in; Website: www.dlfemporio.com 
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6 (a). Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing 
Project): 

NIL 

(b ). Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: 

NIL 

(c). Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: 

N.A. 

(d). Total amount spent for the Financial Year [6(a)+6(b)+6(c)] 

NIL 

(e). CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year 2022-23: 

Total Amount Amount Unspent 
Spent for the (fin lakh) 

financial year Total Amount transferred Amount transferred to any fund 
2022-23 to Unspent CSR Account specified under Schedule VII as per 
(fin lakh) as per Section 135( 6) second proviso to Section 135(5) 

Amount Date of Name of the Amount 
transfer Fund 

NIL 147.30 25.04.2023 - -

(f). Excess amount for set off, if any: 

SI. 
No. 
(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

Particular 

Two percent of average net profit of the company as per 
Section 135(5) 
Total amount spent for the financial year 2022-23 

Excess amount spent for the financial year 2022-23 
[(ii)-(i)] 

Regd. Office: Shopping Mall, Phase-I, DLF City, Gurugram, Haryana-122 002, India 
CIN: U74920HR1999PLC034168; E-mail: dlfemporio@dlf.in; Website: www.dlfemporio.com 

Date of 
transfer 

-

Amount 
(fin lakh) 

147.30 

NIL 

NIL 
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(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or 
activities of the previous financial years, if any 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years 
(iii)-(iv)] 

NIL 

NIL 

7. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: 

SI. Precedin Amount Balance Amount Amount transferred to Amount 
No. g transferred to Amount spent in a fund as specified remaining 

financial Unspent CSR in the under Schedule VII as to be spent 
year(s) Account Unspent financial per second proviso to in 

under CSR year* Section 135(5), if any succeeding 
Section 135 Account (fin lakh) Amount Date of financial 

(6) under (fin lakh) transfer years 
(fin lakh) Section (fin lakh) 

135 (6) 
(fin 
lakh) 

1. 2021-22 191.66 - 191.66 - - -

Deficien 
cy, if 
any 

-
*Note: Excludes interest income of ~ ~ 3.04 lakh earned during the financial year 2022-23 with respect 

to unspent CSR account for financial year 2021-22 which has been spent in animal welfare project and 
contributed to DLF Foundation in accordance with the Board resolution dated 17th October 2022. 

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social 
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: 

Yes No-
lf yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired: 

N.A. 

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through 
Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: 

N.A. 

Regd. Office: Shopping Mall, Phase-I, DLF City, Gurugram, Haryana-122 002, India 
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l I J l::tJ l~J l4J l!> J lOJ 

SI. Short Pin code of Date of Amount Details of entity/ Authority/ 
No. 

particulars of the creation of CSR beneficiary of the 

the property or property or amount registered owner 

asset(s) asset(s) spent 
(fin lakh) 

CSR Name 
[including 

Registratio Registere 
complete 

n number, d 
address and if address 

location of the 
applicable 

property] 
I. - - - - - -
L. - - - - - -

IOTal - - - - -

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average 

net profit as per Section 135( 5): 

The Board of Directors on the recommendation of the CSR Committee had approved 
CSR contribution for undertaking Ongoing/ Multiyear projects. Since all the projects 
are Ongoing/ Multiyear projects, the unspent amount has been transferred to a 
separate bank account ('DLF EMPORIO LTD UNSPENT CORPORATE SOCIAL 
RESPONSIBILTY ACCOUNT FY 2022-23') on 25th April 2023. In accordance with the 
provisions of Section 135(6), the said unspent amount is required to be spent by 
31st March 2026. 

Date: 08.05.2023 
Place: Gurugram 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Of DLF EMPORIO LIMITED 

~~ 
Giri Raj Shah 

(Chairman, CSR Committee) 
(DIN:03436135) 

shpa Bector 
Director & Member 

(DIN: 029J 7)18) 
'!5 ~"'- 1V ~ 
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Annexure-C 

AS & ASSOCIATES 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 

Office: 215, Suneja Tower-II, District Centre, Janak Puri, New Delhi-110058 

Tel. +91-9810135408 

Email: §LJi!sena cs@rediffmail.corn 

Form No. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL VEAR ENDED 31/03/2023 

To, 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

The Members, 
DLF Emporio Limited 

(CIN: U74920HR1999PLC034168} 

Shopping Mall, Phase- 1, 

DLF City, Gurugram-122002 

Haryana 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices by DLF Emporia limited {hereinafter called the Company). 

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the 

corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 

other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its 

officers and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial ,mdit, I hereby report that 

in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the.financial year ended on March 

31, 2023 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has 

proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 

subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 according to the 

provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 {the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder; (Not 

Applicable) 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (FEMA) and the rules and regulations made 

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and 

External Commercial Borrowings;(Not Applicable} 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'): -

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable) 

(b} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015; (Not Applicable} 

1 

DLF Emporio Limited -31.03.2023 
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(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not Applicable) 

{d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits & Sweat 
Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable) 

(e} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 
Securities) Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable) 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Act and dealing with client; (Not 
Applicable) 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 
2021; (Not Applicable) 

(h} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities} Regulations, 
2018; (Not Applicable), and 

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India. (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended. (Not Applicable} 

(vi) The Company has developed a shopping mall-cum entertainment complex named DLF 
Emporia at Vasant Kunj, New Delhi and further leased out to various tenants; in view of this, 
there is no sector specific law applicable to the Company; 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI); 

{ii) The Company has not entered into listing Agreements with Stock Exchange(s) pursuant to 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, as amended; 

Since the Company is an unlisted company, therefore, no activity to be reported under the 
Depositories Act, 1996 and the rules made thereunder. SCRA and the Regulations and Guidelines 
prescribed under the SEBI Act were not applicable to the Company. The Secretarial Standards issued 
by the ICSI were applicable during the period under review. 

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the 

Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with Non-Executive 
Directors. The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of DLF Cyber City Developers limited (DCCDL) 
and is not required to appoint Independent Directors under Section 149 of the Act read with Rule 
4(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014, as amended. The 
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review 
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board and/ or Committee Meetings. Except 
where for urgent business necessity at a shorter notice, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 

DLF Emporio Limited -31.03.2023 
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sent as per the requirement of the Act read with Secretarial Standard-1. A system exists for seeking 
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation at the meeting. 

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in 
minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with 
the size and its operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 
rules, regulations and guidelines. 

I further report that during the audit period: 

(i) there were no instances of Public/Right/Preferential issue of shares/ debentures/sweat 
equity, etc. 

(ii) there were no instances of Redemption/buy-back of securities. 
(iii) there were no instances of major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to 

Section 180 of the Act. 
(iv) (a) Regarding Merger/ amalgamation/ reconstruction, etc., as stated in th.e previous 

Secretarial Audit Reports, that in terms of the Board Resolution passed by the Board of 
Directors ('Board') of the Company at its meeting held on 25th February 2020, the Board 
has approved the Scheme of Amalgamation of Richmond Park Property Management 
Services Limited, the Holding Company with the DLF Emporio limited with Appointed 
Date being opening hours of 1st April 2019 subject to the approval of the National 
Company Law Tribunal {'NCLT') or any other relevant authority /forum having 
jurisdiction to sanction /approve the same. Accordingly, the Joint Motion Petition were 
filed on behalf of both the Transferor Company and Transferee Company before the 
Hon'ble NCLT, Chandigarh Bench seeking sanction of the said Scheme of Amalgamation. 

The Hon'ble NCLT, Chandigarh Bench, vide its Order dated 2nd March 2022 sanctioned 

the Scheme of Amalgamation. In terms of the Order of the Hon'ble NCLT, the Board of 

Directors at its meeting held on 24th March 2022 allotted 24,12,117 equity shares of ~ 

10/- each fully paid -up on the basis of the valuation report issued by 

Registered Valuer, to the shareholder of the Transferor company. Pursuant to the said 

allotment of equity shares, the Company ceases to be a subsidiary of Transferor 

Company and has become direct wholly owned subsidiary of DLF Cyber Developers 

Limited w.e.f. 24th March, 2022. 

As required under section 232(7) of the Act, the Company in relation to the aforesaid 

Order dated 2nd March 2022 has filed a statement in the prescribed form with the 

Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi & Haryana, duly certified by a company secretary 

in practice indicating compliance with the order of the Tribunal dated 22nd October 

2022. 

3 
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(b) During the year, in terms of the Board Resolution passed by the Board at its meeting 

held on 21st July 2022, the Board of Directors of the Company approved the Composite 
Scheme of Arrangement amongst DLF City Centre Umited, DLF Lands India Private 

Limited, DLF Info City Developers (Kolkata) Limited, DLF Emporio Limited (collectively, 
" the Transferor Companies") and DLF Assets Limited ("Demerged Company") with DLF 

Cyber City Developers Limited(hereinafter referred to as the 'Applicant Companies') and 
their respective shareholders under Section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 

Scheme"). The first motion application was jointly filed by the Applicant Companies with 

the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Chandigarh Bench on 24th February, 
2023. 

Except the above there were no other instances of Merger/ amalgamation/ 

reconstruction, etc., and 

(v) there were no instances of Foreign technical collaborations. 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 08.05.2023 

DLF Emporio limited ~31.03.2023 

Signature: ~ ✓• 
For AS& Associates , 
Company Secretaries 
(Anil Setia) 
Prop. 
FCS No.: 2856 
C P No.: 4956 

UDIN of ICSI: F002856E000459103 

Peer Review Certificate no. 1757 /2022 

Unique Identification Number: S2002DE057800 

4 
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Annexure-D 
AOC-2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and 

Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the 

Company with related parties referred to in sub section ( 1) of section 188 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms' length transaction under third proviso 

thereto. 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arms' length basis: 

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year 

ended 3l51 March 2023, which were not at arm's length basis. 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arms' length basis: 
(fin Lakh) 

Name(s) of Nature of Duration Salient terms Date(s) of Transaction Amount 

the related transaction of Approval Amount paid as 

party and Transaction by the advances, 

nature of 
Relationship 
DLF Power & Availing 
Services services 
Limited, fellow 
subsidiary 
company 

08.05.2023 
Gurugram 

of Financial 
year 
2022-23 

Board if any 

The related 20.01.2022 2,207.64 NA 
party 
transactions 
were entered 
during the 
financial year 
at 
arm's length 
basis. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors ~ 

~/ 
Debaraj Schoo 

Director 
(DIN: 08259815) 

of DLF Emporio • ite 

Director 
(DIN: 02917318) 

,,F· ~ ~~ 

Regd. Office: Shopping Mall, Phase-I, DLF City, Gurugram, Haryana-122 002, India 
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S.R. BATLIBOt & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of DLF Emporio Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

2nd & 3rd Floor 
Golf View Corporate Tower - B 
Sector - 42, Sector Road 
Gurugram • 122 002, Haryana, India 

Tel : +91 124 681 6000 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of DLF Emporio Limited ("the Company"), which 
comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of 
Other Comprehensive income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then 
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended ("the Act") in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit including other comprehensive 
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 
'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements' section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants oflndia 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions 
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
Director's Report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

The Director's report is not made available to us as at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing to report 
in this regard. 

S R Batiiboi 8. Co_ LLP, a L1m1tE!d Lrab1lily Partm:1 ship with LLP Identity No AAB-4294 
Reqd Or!ice: 22, C.im<'tc Slrec:,t, Block 'B' ~rd floor, Kolkdtd·700 016 
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect 
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the [Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and 
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

Those Charged with Governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk ofnot detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing 
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we couduJi:: that a mati::rial 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 

and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 

achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 

identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

l. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central 

Government oflndia in terms of sub-section(! 1) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure l" a 

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books; 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive 

Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in 

agreement with the books of account; 

( d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under 

section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (fndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended; 

( e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 3 I, 2023 taken on 

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 3 1, 2023 from being 

appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act; 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements 

and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure 2" to this 

report; 

(g) The Company has not paid or provided for any managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly, 

provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for the year 

ended March 3 I, 2023; 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our 

information and according to the explanations given to us: 

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial 

statements - Refer Note 35 to the financial statements; 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for whid1 Lht:re 

were any material foreseeable losses; 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company. 
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iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have 
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign 
entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Be~eficiaries") or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

b) The management has represented that, no funds have been received by the Company from any 
persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

c) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations 
under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement. 

v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company, 

vi. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company 
only w.e.f. April l, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable. 

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAJ Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005 

/&It .. 
Partner 
Membership Number: 501396 
UDlN: 23501396BGYBOV7267 

Place of Signature: Gurugram 
Date: May 8, 2023 
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Annexure I referred to in paragraph I under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement' section 
' of our report of even date 

Re: DLF Emporio Limited ("the Company") 

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of 
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and 
belief, we state that: 

i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details 
and situation of property, plant and equipment and investment property. 

(B) The Company has not capitalized any intangible assets in the books of the Company and accordingly, 
the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(b) Property, plant and equipment and investment property have been physically verified by the management 
during the year and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification. 

(c) Title deeds of immovable properties included in investment properties are pledged with the lenders as 
security for securing long term borrowings availed by the holding company of the Company and are not 
available with the Company. The same has been confirmed by the lenders as at year end. 

(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment during the year ended March 31, 2023 . 

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property 
under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

ii) (a) The Company does not maintain inventories and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(a) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of~ five crores in aggregate from 
banks or fmancial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of security of current assets. 
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

iii) (a) During the year, the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee 
or provided security to companies, finns, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, 
the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(b) The terms and conditions of the investments made, guarantee provided and security given to bank in 
relation to loan taken by the Holding Company in previous years are not prejudicial to the Company's 
interest. The Company has not granted loans and advances in nature of loans to finns, limited liability 
partnerships or other parties. 

( c) The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, limited 
liability partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(c) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(d) The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, finns, limitec1 
liability partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(d) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(e) The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, limited 
liability partnerships or any other parties, Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 



49

S.R. BATLIBOI & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans during the year, either 
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, limited 
liability partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

iv) Loans, guarantees and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 

2013 are applicable have been complied with by the Company. 

v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed 

to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, 

to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable 

to the Company. 

vi) The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, 

for the products/services of the Company. 

vii) (a) Read together with Note 37 to the financial statements which states that the Company has deposited 

interest off 2.07 lacs on payment of goods and services tax, the Company is regular in depositing with the 

appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, income-tax, cess and 

other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on 

audit procedures perfonned by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were 

outstanding at the year end for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. The 

provisions relating to provident fund, employees' state insurance, value added tax, service tax, sales-tax, 

duty of excise and duty of custom are not applicable to the Company. 

< This space has been intentionally left blank> 
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(b) The dues outstanding of income-tax, service tax and other statutory dues that have not been deposited on 
account of any dispute are as follows: 

Name of the statute Nature of Amount Period to Forum where 
dues (fin lacs) which the dispute is pending 

amount relates 

Income-tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 1,046.70 AY 2009-10 Commissioner of 
Income Tax 
(Appeals) 

Income-tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 5 l.99 AY 2018-19 Commissioner of 
Income Tax 
(Appeals) 

Income-tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 7.72 AY 2020-21 Commissioner of 
Income Tax 
(Appeals) 

Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 277.92 FY 2014-15 to Principal 
2017-18 Commissioner, 

Central GST, Delhi, 
South 
Commisionerate, 
New Delhi 

Goods & Services Tax Act, Goods & 7.04 FY 2018-19 Assistant 
2017 Services Tax Commissioner, 

GST,Delhi 

Delhi Municipal Corporation Electricity 28.51 * FY 2018-22 Commissioner, 
Act, 1957, Delhi Prevention Tax South Delhi 
of Defacement of Property Municipal 
Act, 2007, Advertisement Corporation 
Bye- laws and 
Advertisement Policy, 2017 

*During the earlier years, the Company had made fixed deposits on' 110.29 lacs (including interest accrued) 
with lien marked in favour of Commissioner, South Delhi Municipal Corporation. 

There are no dues of other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. The 
provisions relating to provident fund, employees' state insurance, value added tax, sales-tax, duty of excise 
and duty of custom are not applicable to the Company. 

viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of 
account, in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the 
requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

ix) (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest 
thereon to any lender. 

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government 
or any government authority. 

(c) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the requirement to report 
on clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
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(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has used funds 
raised on short-tenn basis aggregating tot 26,844.01 lacs in the form of borrowings from related parties and 
other current liabilities for long-term purposes representing acquisition of investment property and other 
assets. 

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to 
report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to 
report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

x) (a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer/further public offer 
(including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable 
to the Company. 

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or partially 
or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on 
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xi) (a) No material fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported 
during the year. 

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section ( 12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by secretarial 
auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014 with the Central Government. 

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the 
Company during the year. 

xii) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Act. Therefore, the requirement to report 
on clause 3(xii)(a), clause 3(xii)(b) and 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of the Act, where applicable and 
the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable 
accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly the 
requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not 
applicable to the Company. 

xiv) (a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under 
audit have been considered by us. 

xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its 
directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xvi) (a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable to 
the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to repo11 on clause (xviXa) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. Accordingly, 
the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
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(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank 
of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on clause 
3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding 
financial year. 

xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly, requirement to report 
on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in Note 298 to the financial statements, the ageing and expected 
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying 
the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our 
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions and considering the Company's current liabilities 
exceeds the current assets by t 26,844.01 lacs, the Company has obtained the letter of financial support from 
the Holding Company, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that the Company is 
not capable of meeting its liabilities, existing at the date of balance sheet, as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the 
future viability of the Company. 
We, further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give 
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

xx) (a) [n respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred 
to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with second proviso to 
sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in Note 38 to the financial 
statements. 

(b) All amounts that are unspent under sub-section of section 135 of the Act, pursuant to any ongoing project, 
has been transferred to special account in compliance of with provisions of sub-section (6) of section l 3 5 of 
the said Act. This matter has been disclosed in Note 38 to the financial statements. 

xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial 
statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report. 

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

~ Numbecc JO!OOJE/EJ00,.,00""'5~.., 

Partner 
Membership Number: 501396 
UDlN: 2350l396BGYBOV7267 

Place of Signature: Gurugram 
Date: May 8, 2023 
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the financial statements of DLF Emporio 
Limited ("the Company") 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section (3) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of DLF Emporio Limited 
("the Company") as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company 
for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for [nternal Financial Controls 

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("[CAI"). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial infonnation, as required under the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, as 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
issued by !CAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively 
in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing 
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to these Financial Statements 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (I) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of 
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 
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Inherent Limitations oflnternal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with 
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
issued by the ICAI. 

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI inn Registration Number: 301003E/E300005 

per Amit upta 
Partner 
Membership Number: 501396 
UDIN: 2350l396BGYBOV7267 

Place of Signature: Gurugram 
Date: May 8, 2023 
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ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
lnvesnnent property 
lnveshnenl property under development 
Financial assets 

lnveshllents 
Other financial assets 

Non-current tax assets (net) 
Other non-current assets 
Total non-current usets 

Current assets 
Financial assets 

Trade receiwbles 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Other bank balances 
Other financial assets 

Other current as.seLs 
Total current assets 
TOT AL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
Equity share capital 
Other equity 
Total equity 

Non-current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

Other financial liabilities 
Ueterred tax liabilihes (net) 
Other noJH:Urrent liabilities 
Total non-current ll■ bilities 

Current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

Notes 

3 
4 
4 

5 

6 
7 
8 

9 
10 
II 
6 
8 

12 
13 

14 
15 
16 

Borrowing 17 
Trade payables 18 
TOlal outstanding dues of micro entCTJ)rises and small enterprises 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Other financial liabilities 19 

Other current liabilities 20 
Cum:nt tax liabilities (net) 21 
Total current liabilities 
Total liabilities 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

S1unmary of significant accounting policies 2.2 
The accompanying notes fonns an integral part of these financial statements. 

As per our report of even date 

Mnn,h 31 , 202J 

6.34 
34,82.J.07 

321.52 

87,637.09 
170.44 
42J.7!i 
70.67 

l.ll,-153. 

683,59 
8.73 

1,617.79 
3.78 

311.JO 
2,625.19 

1,26,079.07 

464.54 
89,696.39 
90,160.93 

1,503.63 
4,891.42 

SJ.89 
6,448.94 

20,860.00 

9.25 
41,77 

7,528.03 
1,030.15 

29,469.20 
35,918.14 

1,26,079,07 

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
DLF Emporio Limited 

ICI\ Inn Registration No : 301003E/ E30000S 

.. 
Partner 
Membership Number: 501396 

Place : Gurugram 

D1te : May 8, 2023 

~ --__,. 

Giri Raj Shah 
Director 
DIN: 03436135 

Place : Gurugram 

Date : May 8, 2023 

March 31. 2022 

3 14 
34.646 39 

105 10 

75,628 63 
165 60 

1,355 28 
20441 

1.12,108 55 

492.25 
8 30 

920 80 
3 78 

428.69 
l.8ll82 

1,13,962.37 

464 54 
71,665.59 
72,130 13 

1.175 IJ 
2,221.45 

101.33 
3,497 91 

29.060.00 

30.26 
508.31 

8,026 11 
581 87 
127 78 

38,334.33 
41.832.24 

1,13,962.37 

Pusbpa Bedor 
Director 
DIN 0~9173,1.8 

t,,vl/ 
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Statement or Profir and Loss for the year ended March JI, ZOlJ 
( I// 111111111111); ii, 7 tu • 11111~.n .,,1,.-nvise statedl 

Revenue 

Revenue from operations 
Other income 
Total income 

Expense• 
Cost of power, foe! and l'acilty maintenance expenses 
Finance cosrs 
Deprec1alion expense 
OU1er expenses 
Total e,penses 

Profit before tu 

Tax expense 

Current tax (including earlier years) 

Deferred tax (Including earlier yc:;ars) 

Profit after tax 

Other comprehensive income 

Gain on equity instn1meots rhrough other comprehensive income 

Income tax effect 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Earnings per equity share (f) (Face value orf 10 per sbare(Mon:h 31, 2022: 
fl0 I) 
Basic earning per share (in ?) 

Diluted e•.ming per shore (in f) 

StDnmary of signl!icant accomning polici~ 

The accompanying notes l\,rrn an integral part of these financial sratements 

As per our report of even dale 

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firrn Registration No : 30 I 003E/ EJ0000S 

Partner 

Membership Number. 501396 

Place : Ourugram 

Dale: May 8, 2023 

Nole• 

22 
23 

24 
25 
26 
27 

18 

29 

22 

Morch JI, 2023 

17,759.97 
675.Jl 

18,435.29 

J,031.19 
2,306.19 

846.11 
1,030.95 
7,214.44 

11,220.85 

2,528.54 

(127.52) 

8,819.83 

12,008.46 

(2,797.49) 
9,210.97 

18,030.80 

189.86 

189.86 

For and on behalfof the Board of Directors of 

DLF Emporio Limited 

Giri Raj Shah 
Director 

DIN: 03436135 

Place : Gurugram 

Dale : May 8, 2023 

March J I . 2022 

12,794 16 
316 94 

13.111 10 

Pushpa Bector 

Director 

DIN: 02917318 

/;-v" 

2,444 53 
2,736 87 

852 18 
991 18 

7,024 76 

6,086 34 

1,696 86 

(192.56) 

4,582.04 

832.05 

(193 83) 

63822 

5,220.26 

92_51 

92.51 
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DLF Emporia Limited 
St:tfNlleat of chonge, in equity for the ycnr ended Marth ll~ Z02l 
(All 11111u11nts i11 t lttc:s. 1111/e.u otherwise .1t,111t,I} 

A Equity Jbarr npit"I 
('"h11 1igt"1. I I) t llldl t shue ('11 \Ul.u.l ror tile y~r end,•d Mnrtb J l 202l 

' Pnrriculan BJllnnce as H1 
April l , 2022 

Equicy ,hu e C1pi1nl 464 54 

Particulars Balance as at 
April I. 2021 

El111ity share \!api1111 495 90 

B 01her O1u11, 1 ,~rer •ote t JJ 
Partfc11lnrs 

Securities 
prem1um 

0ab rcc a, at \ pol I, 10!.I 4.4~~ 00 
C: h11,gcs 1n , ~ 011111ins policy or p,10< peood errors 
Rella,« bolona: as al Ap ril I. 201 I 4,455 OD 
r rofi1 for lhe yn r . 
lmp,ct or,cheme ofamalsamllion (refer note 41) {2,450 25) 
0 1hcrconmn:lic.ri .sive. loi.::~11te for lhi:i :vnr . 
O.la11 tt u At March Jl. 10.U 2,004.75 
Chonyi:s m •c=•ri1's policy or prior period errors . 
Rcs1n1<d balance as a1 Mor,;l,1 I. 2022 Z.004.15 
l'rofit for O>c year -
0Iher comnn!hi:n!Uve income fer thL:. vc1r -
Al n, Much J I , ZOJJ Z.004.75 

The accompanying notes ronns an integral part nflhr..~ fin.\nc.ial staletnenl!i. 

As per our report of even date 

For S.R. Botllboi & Co. LLP 

Membership Number. 501J96 

Pl1ce Gurugratn 

Dolt : May 8, 2023 

ChJ111ges due to prior ~riod ReslAted .,.,,,., bAlnnce as nl 
April 1.2012 

46-1 54 

Changes due 10 prior period Restated 
enors balance ilS ll 

April I, 2021 

495 90 

R~trYCI .and 1uni l11r 
Copital Capitnl General 

rrdempllon reserve ,...,.,,. 
reserve 

410 13.125 00 

- . 
410 13,12500 

(239 62) 

. 
4.10 (239.61) 13.125,00 
. . . 

4. UI (239.51) 13.125.00 . 
-

4. 10 (239.62) 13,115.00 

ChangH during the yenr Bnlf1nce 11:11 at 
Morch l 1. 2023 

J64 54 

Cha~es du,ing the vear (refer note Balance as a.t 
JI) Masch 31 2022 

(JI 36) 464 54 

Equity Tot■ I other 
RelJlined instnnaenh equity 
e.ralngs lhrough olhrr 

compnhensi"e 
Income 

61 ,653 '}) 619'.!9 19,851 32 
. 

61.65] 93 619 29 19,8S1 32 
4.582 04 - 4.582 04 

c10.n212J - (13,411 99) 
63822 6) &22 

55,513.85 1,257.51 71,665.59 
. - . 

55.513.85 1,257.51 71.665.59 
8.819.83 . 8,819.113 

- 9_,l] Q.97 9.210.97 
64,333.68 10.468.48 89.696.J9 

For ■nd on beh1lfof1he e .. rd of Directors of 
DLJ Emporlo Uotittd 

Giri Raj Shah 
Director 
DIN: 03436135 

Place : Guruyram 

Dote May 8, 2023 

~ 
Director 
DIN: 02917318 

~V' 
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DLF En1porio Limired 
Sratement or cash now for lhe year ended Mun,h JI, 2023 
(AJl 11mnunts in r l11cs. unla.--v fJl/11:rwise.11utedJ 

A. Cash flow from operarine octl\'ifies 
Profit before ta, 
Adjushnent for: 
Interest c.~pcnsc 
Provision for doubrful debts 
Amount forfeited 011 properties 
Pro ... ision for advances 
Unclaimed balances and c~ce~s pcovisions wiitten back 
Dividend income 
Depreci:ilion e:<pensc 
Rent stra1ghrti11ing 
Fi11nncial liabilily measured al amortised cost (net) 
lnterest income 
Operating profit befon working .. pltal cbaogu 
Adjuslment for change in working capital: 
Decrease in aade receivables 
Increase in loans. financial 811d 01her assers 
(DecreaseYlnciease in trade payables 
Increase in financial and other liabilities 
Cash now from oper■liom 
Income tax paid (net ofo:funds) 
Net cash Dow From operari.ng acd•llies 

B. C11b l1ow from in•esling 1cli\lllies 

Purchase ofpmpeny. plant and equipment and invesnnent properly (including inveshnent property under 
developmenl) 

(Investments m)/ proceeds from fixed deposils (ner) 
Decrease in olher bunk balances 
Dividend received 
Interest received 
Net cash now from in• .. ling activities 

C. C.ull Dow from lin■m.:iag 11ellvlrtes 
Repaymcnr of lon11 term borrowings 
Proceeds Crom sh<><t term borrowings 
Repayment of short renn borrowings 
Interest paid 
Net ca.,h wed in linandng 1mwities 

Ner decrease in cash ■nd cash equivalenb (A+B+C) 

Cash nnd ca,h equi•alcmrs at the beginning of lhe year 
Cash and cash cquivalenrs acquiml punuant lo the schemo of amalgamolion (refer note 41) 

Cash and cash equivalenb at the end oFlhe year (refer note 10) 

Summary ofsil!Dificant accounting policies 
The accompanying notes forms an integral parr of these financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

For S.R. Balllbol & Co. LLP 

Membership Number: S01396 

Pl••" . Ou1ug1am 

Date : May 8. 2023 

22 

March JI, 2023 Ma1ch JI, 2022 

11,220.85 6.086 34 

2,1-48.81 2.4q4 00 
7.41 186 53 

(26.241 
IIUI 

(Jll.llJ (3 25) 
(0.67) (0 67) 

~6.11 85118 
187.74 360 07 
11.41 ( 17 95) 

(SS.28) (257 89) 
14,129.33 9.699 36 

124.48 195 55 
(J9.56) (762) 

(487.SS) 43 80 
602.85 701.31 

lol,J29.5S 10,632 40 
(l,724.B4) (1.570.SI) 
12,604.71 9,061.89 

(1,258.72) (91 28) 

(724.20) 1.094.SS 
22.38 21,132-36 

0.67 0.67 
45.83 989.SS 

(1,914.04) 23.12S.85 

(47.112.32) 
15,500.00 26.000.00 

(ll,700.00) (9.500.00) 
(M90.24) (1,575 .25) 

(I 0,690.24) (32,187 S7) 

D.-ll 0.17 

8.30 I 6S 
648 

.7J 8.30 

For and on bchalfoflhe Board of DirectoT3 of 
DLF Emporio Llmiled 

Girl Raj Shah 
Director 
DIN: 03436135 

l'laco : Uurusr.im 

Date . May 8, 2023 

# 
Pushpa Rector 
Director 
DIN: 02917318 

V"'-
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DLF E:mporio Limited 
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All t1mount in l l"':s, unless otherwise stated) 

I. Corporate information 

Nature of principal activities 

DLF Emporio Limited ("the Company") is a public company domiciled in India and has its registered office in Gurugram. 
Haryana. The Company was incorporated on March 17, 1999 under the provisions of Indian Companies Act. The registered 
office of the Company is located at Shopping Mall, Phase-I, DLF City, Gurugram , Haryana. 

The Company has constructed a Shopping mall-cum-entertainment complex named as DLF Emporio, at Vasant Kunj, 
consisting of shops, commercial spaces, entertainment centre including but not limited to eateries, convention hall, indoor 
games court, food court, restaurants etc. and basement for parking and other spaces etc . The Company is engaged in the 
business of leasing and maintenance of shopping mall. 

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board of 
Directors on May 8, 2023. 

2. Significant accounting policies 

2.1 Basis of preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, (as 
amended from time to time). 

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial 
assets and financial liabilities which are measured at fair values as explained in relevant accounting policies. 
The financial statements have been presented in Indian Rupees (~) and all values have been rounded to the nearest lacs, 
except when otherwise indicated. 

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies 

a) Current and non-current classification 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's nonnal operating cycle and 
other criteria set out in Companies Act 2013. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and non­
current liabilities, as the case may be. 

b) Revenue from contracts with customers and other streams of revenue 

i) 

ii) 

Revenue comprises the consideration received or receivable for providing retail spaces on operating lease, rendering of 
maintenance service and other income in the ordinary course of the Company's activities. Revenue is presented, net of 
taxes, rebates and discounts (if any). 

Revenue is recognized as follows: 
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer 
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or 
services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically 
controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer. 

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, except for contingent rental income 
which is recognised when it arises. Refer note 2(g) for policy relating to recognition of rental income. 
Revenue in respect of maintenance services is recognised over time, in accordance with the tenns of the respective 
contract. 

iii) Interest income is recorded on accrual basis using the effective interest rate (ElR) method. 
iv) Advertisement/promotional income is recognised on accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the agreement. 
v) Parking income includes revenue earned from the operations of the parking facilities, which is recognised when the 

services are rendered. 
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DLF Emporio Limited 
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All <mwu11I in /" lacs, unles.~ otherwise stctled) 

Contract balances 

Contract assets 

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company 
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, 
a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional. The same has been included under the head 
''unbilled receivables" in the financial statements. 

Trade receivables 

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of 
time is required before payment of the consideration is due). 

Contract liabilities 

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received 
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the 
Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the 
payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the 
contract. The same has been included under the head "advance from customers" in the financial statements. 

c) Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized 
during the period of time that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. A qualifying asset 
is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is 
suspended in the period during which the active development is delayed due to, other than temporary, interruption. All other 
borrowing costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss as incurred. 

d) Property, plant and equipment 

Recognition and initial measurement 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if 
capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended 
use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are included in the 
asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in 
statement of profit or loss as incurred. 

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives) 
Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method, computed on the basis of useful 
lives (as set out below) prescribed in Schedule II to the Act: 

Asset cate o Estimated useful life (in ears 
Office equipments 5 

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted 
prospectively, if appropriate. 

De-recognition 
An item of prope1ty, plant and equipment and any significant pa1t initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or 
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the 
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the 
income statement when the asset is derecognised. 

oRio 

~o,,,,, UJ ~ 
-; 

~ "' 0 C> 
* 
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DLF Emporio Limited 
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(,411 amount in l l"cs, unless ot!terwise stated) 

Transition to Ind AS 
On transiLion to Intl , the C 111pan_ has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property, plant and equipmeni recognised o al /\pti l I, 20 I · me isu.n:d as per the provisions of previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of propen..)- . pla.nr and equipment. 

e) Investment property 

Recognition and initial measurement 
Investment property is property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation, or both. Investment property is measured in it ially at their cost of acqui ition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalia11ion crit ria are met and di rectly attriburnble cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade di count and rebates are deducted in arri ing at the purchase price. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit or los as incurred. 

Capital work-in-progress 
Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects under development and are carried at cost. Cost includes related acquisition expenses, development/ construction costs, borrowing costs and other direct expenditure. 

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives) 
Depreciation on investment property is provided on the straight-line method, computed on the basis of useful lives (as set out below) prescribed in chedule II to the Act: 

Asset cate or:v 
Buildings 
Plant and equipments 

Estimated userul life in ears 
60 

3-15 

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

De-recognition 
Investment property is derecognised ei ther when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future econom ic benefit is expected from their disposa l. The di fference between the net disposal proceeds and the carry ing amount of the asset is recognised in statement of profit or loss in the period of de-recogn ition. 

Transition to Jnd AS 
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its Investment property recognised as at April I, 20 l 5 measured as per the provisions of previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of investment property. 

f) Foreign currencies 

Functional and presentation currency 
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ('INR') which is also the functional and presentation currency of the Company. 

Transactions and balances 
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying to the exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. 

Foreign currency monetal items outst'anding at the balance sheet date are converted to functional currency using the closing rate. Non-monetary irems den minnted in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange rate at the date of !he ll1lllsnction . 

Exchange differences arising on such conversion and settle nt from those at wh • tly recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in they arise. W 

~ 
0 • 
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DLF Ernporio Limited 
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 3 l, 2023 
(All amount in l' lacs, unlen otherwise stated) 

- ----------------- --- -----~-
g) Leases 

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the 
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

Company as a lessee 

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases 
of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing 
the right to use the underlying assets. 

Right to use assets 

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is 
available for use). Right-ot:use assets are measured at cost. less any accumulated depreciation and impainnent losses, and 
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities 
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease 
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis. over the shorter of the lease term and the 
estimated useful lives of the assets. 

ff ownership of the lea$ed asset tra11 ·fers to the Company at the end of the lease te1111 or the cost reflects the exercise of a 
purchase option, depreciat ion is calculatcc.l using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject 
to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in note 2(h) for impairment of non-financial assets. 

Lease liabilities 

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease 
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed 
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts 
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price ofa purchase option 
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term 
reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. 

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease 
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily detenninable. After the commencement 
date, the amount of lease I iabi Ii ties is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. 
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a 
change in the lease payments or a change in the assessment ofan option to purchase the underlying asset. The Company's 
lease liabilities are included in interest-bearing loans and borrowings. 

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 

The Corn pan, applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (i.e., 
those leases thai have a lease term of 12 month or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). 
It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be 
low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term. 

Company as a lessor 

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified 
as operating leases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature. Rental income is 
recognized on straight line basis over the lease term and is included in revenue in the Statement of Profit and Loss due to 
its operating nature . Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying 
amount of the leased asset and recognised ~ver the lease term on the same basis as rental income. 

Leases which effectively transfer to the lessee subs·1~1,.ur,~~IC)]"III risks and benefits incidental to own 
item are classified and accounted for as finance lea ·1::iplS are apportioned between the • 
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DLF Emporia Limited 
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All ,mwunt in ~ Ines, unless otherwise st"ted) 

capital repayment based on tht: implicit rate of return. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which 
they are earned. 

h) Impairment of non-financial assets 

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication based on internal/external factors, that an 
asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such 
recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than 
its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and the reduction is treated as an impairment 
loss and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If, at the reporting date there is an indication that a previously 
assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable 
amount. Impairment losses previously recognized are accordingly reversed in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

i) Financial instruments 

Initial recognition and measurement 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 
the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, except for those carried at fair 
value through profit or loss which are measured initially at fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and 
financial liabilities is described below. 

Non-derivative financial assets 
Subsequent measurement 

i. Financial assets at amortised cost - the financial assets is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions 
are met: 

• The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and 
• Contractual tenns of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 

(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate (EIR) method. 

ii. Equity investments -All equity inv.estments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which 
are held for trading are generally classified as at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). For all other equity instruments, 
the Company decides to classify the same either as at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value 
through profit and loss (FVTPL). The Company makes such election on an instrument by instrument basis. The 
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

De-recognition of financial assets 
A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the 
Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset. 

Non-derivative financial liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 
All non-derivative financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the 
acquisition of the financial liabilities is also adjusted. These liabilities are classified as amortised cost. 
Subsequent measurement 
Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. 

De-recognition of financial liabilities 
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different tenns, or the terms of an 
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss. 
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DLF Emporio Limited 
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All flmount in ~ /fies, unless otlterwi.fe st"ted) 

Offsetting of financial instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently 
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets 
and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

j) Compound financial instrument 

Compound financial instrument are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the contract. On 

issuance of the said instrument, the liability component is arrived by discounting the gross sum at a market rate for an 

equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount is classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost until it 
is extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is recognised as equity component of compound 

financial instrument. This is recognised and included in shareholders' equity, net of income tax effects, and not subsequently 
re-measured. 

k) Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition 
of impairment loss for financial assets. 

ECL is the weighted average of difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance 
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest 
rate, with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. When estimating the cash flows, the Company is required 
to consider -
• All contractual tem,s of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) over the expected life of the assets. 

• Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. 

Trade receivables 
In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires measurement 
of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected 
credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 

Other financial assets 
In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased 
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company 

measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime 
expected credit losses. 

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the 
financial asset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at 
the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition and 

considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of 

significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset 

has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is detem,ined to have low credit risk at the 
balance sheet date. 

I) Income Taxes 

Tax expense recognized in statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax except the ones 

recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. 

Current income tax 

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation 
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at 
the reporting date. 

Current tax is detennined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year and is computed in accordance with 
relevant tax regulations. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is rofit 

'? 
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or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with 
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where 
appropriate. 

Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between carrying amount ofassets and liabilities for financial 
reporting purposes and corresponding amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets on unrealised tax loss are 
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss will be utilised against future taxable income. This is 
assessed based on the Company's forecast of future operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and 
expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each 
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred 
tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the 
reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside statement 
of profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). 

Unused tax credit (Minimum alternate tax ('MAT') credit entitlement) is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent 
there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which 
such credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of 
profit and loss and shown as unused tax credit. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down 
the carrying amount of unused tax credit to the extent it is not reasonably certain that the Company will pay norrnal income 
tax during the specified period. 

Goods & Services Tax (GST) paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses 

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount ofGST, except: 
• When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the 

tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable. 
• When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included. 

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables 
in the balance sheet. 

m) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, demand deposits with banks/corporations and short-tern, highly liquid 
investments (original maturity less than 3 months) that are readily convertible into known amount of cash and are subject 
to an insignificant risk of change in value. 

n) Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities 

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of 
the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted 
to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is 
material. 
Contingent liability is disclosed for: 
• Possible obligations which will be confinned only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or 
• Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 

settle the obligation or a reliahle estimate of the 11mount of the obligation c11nnot be made. 

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when inflow of economic benefits is probable, related asset is disclosed. 
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o) Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after 
deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events including a bonus issue. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all 
dilutive potential equity shares. 

p) Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty 

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related disclosures. 

Significant management judgements 

Property lease classification - Company as lessor 

The Company has entered into retail property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Company has determined, 
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major part 
of the economic life of the commercial property and the present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting to 
substantially all of the fair value of the commercial property, that it retains substantially all the risks and rewards incidental 
to ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases. 

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options- Company as lessor 

As a lessor, the Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods 
covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to 
terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The Company has several lease contracts that include 
extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether 
or not the lessee shall exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create 
an economic incentive for the lessee to exercise either the renewal or termination. 

During the year, the Company has neither included the renewal period nor the period covered by an option to terminate the 
lease as part of the lease term for buildings given to leases to tenants considering the following: 

i. Option of renewal of lease tenn is solely at the option of lessee and the Company is not reasonably certain that the lessee may 
exercise the option of renewal, as this is outside the control of the Company. 

ii. Considering the current market dynamics of rental market, the Company has estimated that lease term for the leases will be 
'non- cancellable' period. 

Furthermore, the periods covered by termination options are included as part of the lease term only when they are reasonably 
certain not to be exercised. 

Refer to note 4 (vi) for information on potential future rental payments relating to periods following the exercise date of 
extension and termination options that are not included in the lease term. 

Estimates 

Recognition of deferred tax assets - The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment 
of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized. 
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Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets - The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impai1ment of assets 
requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the 
assets. 

Impairment of financial assets - At each balance sheet date, based on historical defau It rates observed over expected I ife, 
the management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding receivables and advances. 

Provisions ~ At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the Company 
assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding warranties and guarantees. However. the actual future 
outcome may be different from this judgement. 

Valuation of investment property - Investment prope1ty is stated at cost. However, as per Ind AS 40 Investment property 
there is a requirement to disclose fair value as at the balance sheet date. The Company engaged independent valuation 
specialists to determine the fair value of its investment property as at reporting date. 
The determination of the fair value of investment property requires the use of estimates such as future cash flows from the 
assets (such as lettings, future revenue streams, capital values of fixtures and fittings, any environmental matters and the 
overall repair and condition of the property) and discount rates applicable to those assets. In addition, development risks 
(such as construction and letting risk) are also taken into consideration when determining the fair value of the properties 
under construction. These estimates are based on local market conditions existing at the balance sheet date. 

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate 

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing 
rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The lBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a 
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in 
a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company 'would have to pay', which requin:s 
estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of 
the lease. The Company estimates the !BR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is 
required to make certain company specific estimates. 

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets - Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of 
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these 
estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of certain software, customer 
relationships, IT equipment and other plant and equipment. 

2.3 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 

New and amended standards that have an impact on the Company's financial statements, performance and/or 
disclosures. 

There were certain amendments that apply for the first time for the year ending March 31, 2023, but do not have a 
material impact on the financial statements of the Company. The Company has not early adopted any standards or 
amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective. 

(i) Reference to the Conceptual Framework - Amendments to Ind AS 103 
The amendments replaced the reference to the [CAi's "Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial 
Statements under Indian Accounting Standards" with the reference to the "Conceptual Framework for Financial 
Reporting under Indian Accounting Standard' without significantly changing its requirements. 
The amendments also added an exception to the recognition principle of Ind AS I 03 Business Combinations to avoid 
the issue of potential 'day 2' gains or losses arising for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the 
scope of Ind AS 37 Provisions, ContinRent liabilities and ContinRent Assets or Appendix C, Levies, of Ind AS 37, if 
incurred separately. 
It has also been clarified that the existing guidance in Ind AS I 03 for contingent assets would not be affected by 
replacing the reference to the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements under Indian 
Accounting Standards. 
The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April I, 2022. The amendments did 
not have any impact on the Company. 
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(ii) Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract - Amendments to Ind AS 37 
The amendments to Ind AS 37 specify which costs an entity needs to include when assessing whether a contract is 
onerous or loss-making. The amendments apply a "directly related cost approach". The costs that relate directly to a 
contract to provide goods or services include both incremental costs for example direct labour and materials and an 
allocation of other costs directly related to contract activities for example an allocation of the depreciation charge for 
an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling that contract. General and administrative costs do not relate 
directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. 

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April I, 2022. The amendments did 
not have any impact on the Company. 

(iii) Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments - Fees in the' 10 per cent' test for derecognition of financial liabilities 
The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified 
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the original financial liability . These fees include only 
those paid or received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or 
lender on the other's behalf. 
The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April I, 2022. The amendments did 
not have any impact on the Company. 

(iv) Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use - Amendments to Ind AS 16 
The amendments modified paragraph I 7(e) of Ind AS 16 to clarify that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced 
over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable 
costs considered as part of cost ofan item of property, plant, and equipment. 

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022. The amendments did 
not have any impact on the Company. 

2.4 Standards issued but not yet effective 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) in consultation with National Financial Reporting Authority (NFRA) vide its 
notification dated March 31, 2023, has made certain amendments in Companies (Indian Accounting Standard Rules), 2015. 
Such amendments shall come into force with effect from April I, 2023, but do not have a material impact on the financial 
statements of the Company: 

(i) Ind AS I: Presentation of Financial Statements 

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the 
requirement for entities to disclose their 'significant' accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their 'material' 
accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about 
accounting policy disclosures. Consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 107 also. 

The Company is currently revisiting their accounting policy information disclosures to ensure consistency with the amended 
requirements. 

(ii) Ind AS 8: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and 
the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting 
estimates. 

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April I, 2023. The amendments arc not 
expected to have a material impact financial statement of the Company. 

(iii) Ind AS 12: Income Taxes 

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. 
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The amendments should be applied to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative period 
presented. In addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, a deferred tax asset (provided that 
sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability should also be recognised for all deductible and taxable 
temporary differences associated with leases and decommissioning obligations. Consequential amendments have been made 
in Ind AS IOI. 

The Company is currently assessing the impact of the amendments. 

pace has been intentionally left blank) 
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J Property, plant and equipment 
The changes in the carrying value or property, plant and equipment for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are 
as folloo/-1· 

Office equipment Total 

Gross block 
As at April I, 2021 1548 1548 
Additions 
Disposals/adjustment 
As at March 31, 2022 1548 1548 

Additions 5,57 5.57 

Disposals/adjustment 
As at March ll, 2023 21.05 21.05 

Accumulated depreciation 
As at April I, 2021 10 84 10 84 
Charge for the year I 50 1.50 
Disposals/ adjustments 
As al March 31, 2022 12.34 12.34 

Charge for the year 2.37 2.37 

Disposals/adjustment 
As at March 31, 2023 14.71 14.71 

Net block 
As at March 31, 2022 3.14 3.14 
As at March 31, 2023 6.34 6.34 

{i) Contractual obligations 
The Company does not have any contractual commitments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment as at March 31, 
2023 and March 31, 2022 

(ii) Capitalised borrowing cost 
The Company has nol capitalised any borrowing cost during the year ended March 31, 2023 and the year ended March 31, 2022 

(iii) Deemed cost of property, plant and equipment (represents deemed cost on the date or trauition to Ind AS I.e. on April 
I, 2015) 

Description Gross block 
Accumulated 

Net block 
depreciation 

.Office equipments 3238 22.28 10 10 
Total 32.38 ll.18 10.10 

(This space has been inienJionally left blank) 
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lnvestme1ll property 11nd investment p1-operty under developme11t 

The changes m rhe carryrn~ voJue of investment ~ fotrl~ a:nd mvestment property under development for the year ended March JI, 2023 and ,\.1arch JI. 10~2 are as follows 

Land B11ildi11g, Pion( 11nd c-1.11,lcuu~nl Totnl lw~csun~,u TotRI 
proporry 

Gross bl0<k 
Asat Apnl I, !O!I 

Addn1ons 

D1sposals/adJustment 
As at March ) I, 202:! 

Additio11, (1·efer nole 4( ix)) 

DlspoJRls/odjustmenl 
As at March JI, 2023 

Accumulatetl depreci.ution 
As al April I, 2021 

Charge for the year 

D1sposaJs/adjustmenls 
As al March JI, 2022 

Ch1rge for the year 

DispM41lsh1dju,tme111t 
As •I Mardi JI , 2023 

Net block 
As at March 31, 2022 

A, nt MNrth JI, 20ZJ 

18,477 14 

18.477 14 

1,021.41 

19,498.55 

18,477 14 

19,498.55 

17.471 0 1 

1409 

11.485 10 

( I .92) 

11,"67. t! 

1,937 77 

]39 54 

2,277 31 

332.64 

(17.91) 
2.scn.OJ 

15,207 79 

U ,87S.15 

.Ageing of investment ri•'{•Juitty under iJt'\ldilfhUl.""i\f l.1111 u~ y~rended Mon:h JI, 2023 
Partlc,dnrs 

ProJects m progress 

L ... thnn I 1-1 years 

''"-" 
216,42 105.10 

n 1101nii of investmenl Jl1'0pcrty under dcrvclopmcnl du""ll ye4r ended March JI, 2022 
Particulars Amount 

Less than t 1-2 years 2-3 yea,s More than 3 year.; 

ProJects ln progn:ss 105 10 

4 JOJ 69 40.251 84 

7 59 21 68 

4,J 11 28 40.27] 52 

1,021.41 

(17.92) 
4,Jll,28 41,277.01 

2,838 67 4,776 44 

511 15 850 68 

J.)49 81 5,627 12 

511.10 IWJ.74 

(17,92) 
J,860,91 6,452.94 

961 47 J4,M6 39 

450.37 34,824.07 

Tomi 

Jll.52 

Total 

105 10 

under 
develol)menl 

105 10 

105 10 

lll.52 

105 10 

321.52 

,I0,251 84 

126 77 

l,2J7.8J 

(17.92) 
41,598.53 

4.776 44 

850 68 

5,627 12 

843.74 

(17.<n) 
6,452.94 

34,751 49 

35,145,59 

As on March JI, 2023 and March 31, 202.'.?., there 1s no project class1fied as: invesrment properties under dcvelopmenl whose completion 1s overdue or has exceeded the cost, 
based on ong1nal approved plan 

(I) Cootrnctnal obligalions 

Refer note 35 ror disclosure of conltactual commitments for the acquis1hon of investment property 

(ii) Capitalised borrowing cost 

The Company has nol cepiwlixd any borrowing cost dunng the year ended March JI , 2023 and the year ended March 31, 2022 

(iii) lnveslment property predpd AS se~urily 

Tho tllle deeds of immovable property held in the OIUTle oflhe Company amounling 10 f 19,498 55 lacs along w11h bu1ldmi1 constructed on ,aid land having net block of f 
14,875 15 lacs are pledged w11h bank against bormwm!!,5 taken by lhe holding company from lhe said bank and are not physically available with lhe Company 

(iv) Addilion, includes? Nil (March JI, 2022: r 14 09 lacs) capitahzed as brokerage expense in Building under 1he head " lnves:tmenl Propen}f'" in accordance with the fod 
AS I 16 "Leases• and deprecialed over the lease term 

{v) Amount t'N'o~u~ t in statement or Profil and Lou ror Investment property, 

Particular> Marth JI, 2023 March JI, 2022 
Renie.I income 14.J+i,81 10,451 88 
Direct operatmg e.xpenses lhet generated rental income (509.51) (235 21) 
Direct operating expenses that did not generated renla1 income . 
Profit from leflsing orinvestmenl property berore depre:ciatioa 13,835.30 10,216 67 
Deprec1alton e,:pensc (8-13.74) (850 68) 

Proflf (rom ln s in_g of ln~'fflmfol property n ntr' J epncintian 12,991.56 9,)65 9Q 

tJ
oRio <_,, 

UJ ~ 

~ ~ 
O 0 
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(vi) Operati11g leR.!le commihnenls- as a letior 

The Company has en1ered into operalmg leases on rts m'o'es1men1 property portfolio cons1stmg of retail building (see Nole 2J) These leases ha"'e 1e1m, of belween 3 and Q 

yea1s All leases mclude a clause to enable upward rev1s1on of1he rental charioe as per the a~reemen1 and according 10 prevailing market conditions 

l'nT1im ln~ ,lnn:li J I, J0l:J \10<d1 II 202:? 
, phl one year 7,US7,114 6,17264 
•\0c:r one: yenr buc 11or more thHn 5 years U49.65 1,664 0:? 
\11•t 1ha, I ru u ).<:ill -
Tu1ol ~.506,6, l<Tlo o<> 

("IIJ foir Value o(inveslment propertle 

Pnrliculan March JI, 2023 March JI. 202:? 

Fair.Value of investment prooert1es l,6.J.940.00 1.44.560 00_ 

The fau value of investment pro~rty has been de1ermmed by ex1emaJ, mdependen1 registered property valuers as defined under rule 2 ofCompames (Rey1s1ered Valuers and 
Valuallon) Rules. 2017, having appropriate recognised professional qualificalion and recent experience in the location and category of the property bemg valued m 
conjuncuon w11h \!aluer assessmenl services undertaken by m1ernat1onal property consullant The Company obtains independent valuation for its investment propi:rty at least 
annually and faar value measurements are categonzcd as level 3 measurement in the fair value lueran:hy 
The valuation bns been taken as ~• avemge or vah1es arrivetl 11Sing the following methodologies: 
(i) Discounted cash flow method. where net present value 1s determined based on projeded cash Hows discounted at 1111 appropriate rate 
(ii) Sales comparable method, which compares the price or price per unit area of similar properties being sold 1n the marke1place 
The fair value or inveshnent property and investment property under developmenl has been computed by the Valuer as an average of fair values derived usmg above two 
method• 

Further, inpuls used in the above vnluatlon models are a:1 under: 
(i) Property details comprising of lolel lea sable area, area actually leased, vacant area. parking slots etc 
(ii) Revenue assumplions comprising of market rent, market parkmg rent, rent growth rate, parking income growth rate, market lease 1enure, market escalations," 

CAM income prevailing in the market el'C 
(iii) Cost assumptions comprising, or brokerage cost, cransaction cost on sale. cost escalations etc 
(iv) Discounting assumptions comprising of lerminal cep rate. djSC()unt rate 
(v) Estimated cash Rows from lease rentals., parking income. operation and maintenance income etc ror the future years 

(viH) Deemed cosl orinve9t01eot property as 011 Apn1 l, 2015 
For investment property existing as on the date of transition to Ind AS. i e., April I, 20 IS, the Company has used Indian GAAP canymg. 'o'alue as deemed costs 

Doscriplian f:rM.1 hlnrk 
Accumulated 

Net block 
denreciatlon 

Land 18,477 14 18,47114 
Buildings 20,296 95 2,797 75 17,49920 
Plant and equipments 5.26606 1.14438 4,12168 
Total 44,040.15 3.!141.IJ 40.098.02 

(ix) Dorms the year, the Company has paid ? 1,021 41 lacs and , 52 9'I lacs pertaining 10 addiuonel fAR charges and cess charses respectively 10 South Delhi Municipal 

Corporahon ("SDMC") for availing addi1ional fAR of 7,074 55 sq ml The same has been sancuoned by SDMC on february 20. 2023 and accordmgly, these charges have 

been capilahsed under lhe head "Land" and "lnYeSbnenl Property under development" respectively 

(/11i., rpace has hee11 i111e11//cmtJl/y left hlunlc) 
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S lnvestntenls - noq current 

In compulsory convertible preference shares 

Paliwal Real Estate Limned (1cfcr nole 5 I) 
- 6 50.00 000 (March 31. 2022: 6 50 00 000) 5% Non-<:umulati•e compulsory con.,,tible preference ,ha,es of ~ 100 each 
DLF Assets Limilcd (refc, note 5 2) 

- 67.30.000 (Mar<:h 31. 1022: 67.30.000) 001% Compulsory con,ert,ble preference shares of? 100 each 

March JI, 2023 

76,505.00 

11,132.09 

87,6J7.09 

March 31. 2022 

65.325 00 

10.303 63 

75.628 63 

5.1 In acco1d1mce with p1ovisions of Ind AS 109 ·"Financ1al Instruments" 1:md lnd AS 32 ·'Finnncinl instruments: P1esentation". lht! Company has classified the Rbove 
insnument as ·'Equity lnstrumcnt'" and has mcaswed the same at f; 1r value thmugh other comprehensive income and lrns accordingly, recognised a gain of 't 
I 1.180 00 lacs (MRrch 3 U022: ~60 00 lacs) (deferred ta.x thereon t 2,604 49 lacs (Ma,ch 31, 2022: ?60 57 lacs)) in 01het comprehensi,e income The fai, value or 
non-cumulab\'e compulsorily convertible preference shares is as per the ran valuntion report of au exlcmaJ valuer. which hos been deIennmed using discounted cash 
How method. 

5.2 In accordance wilh provisions of Ind AS I 09 "Financml lnslruments" and Ind AS 32 .. Financial instruments: ?resentation", the Company has classified d,e above 

instrument as "Equiiy Instrument .. and has measured the same at fair value through othe, comp1ehensive income and has accordingly, recognised a gain on 828 46 

IRcs (March 31. 2022: ?57205) (deferred tax d1ereon? 193 00 lacs (Mruch 31. 2022: 'f133 26)) in other comp,ehensive mcome The fair value of compulsorily 

co1we11ible preference shares is as per the [air valuation report of an extemBI valuer, which has been detennioed using discounted cash How method 

6 Other financial DBSets 

Bank deposits with maturily more than 12 months (refer note 35) 
Security deposits 
Interest accrued on securiiy deposit 

7 Nnn eurt,NU ,,." 4-«d:$ ht,r) 

Advonce income tax (net of pro\'isioos for tax)(refcr uote 35) 

8 Other assets 

Advonce lo suppliers 

Unbilled receivables• 

Balance with statutory authorities 

Prepaid expenses 

Less: lmpaitment of non financial assets 

Non .. current 
Mar<h JI, 2023 March 31. 2022 

110.29 
60.15 

170.44 

Non--c11rrent 

!05.45 
60 15 

165.60 

March JI, 202.1 March 31, 2022 

70.67 204.41 

70.67 204.41 

70.67 20441 

• includes l' 137 47 lacs (March 31. 20?..2;? 325.21 locs) on account of straightlining of renlal i_ncome 

(This space hru been intenrionally leji blank) 

Current 
Mardtll,2023 March 31, 2022 

J,78 3.78 
J,78 J 78 

Non-current 

March JI, 20ZJ March JI, 2022 

423.75 1,355 28 

1,355 28 

Currall 

March JI, 2023 March 3 I, 2022 

226..34 16204 

77.16 121 09 

7.64 58 68 

112.57 8688 

423.71 428.69 

l l 12.411 
Jll.JO 428.69 

tJ
oR/o<.,,, 

~ l.JJ -
\.I,., -; 

> · ? 
0 
~ 
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DI.I' Emporio Limiled 
Notes to the nnanclal st11tementJ ror the year ended Morch JI, ?OZJ 

(All amtJunt.s in t lucs, 11nless 11therwi~e 1.1,tlt!'II) 

Current 

March JI, 2023 Ma,ch 3 I. 2022 

9 Trade receivables 

Related parties (refer note 39) 

Secured, considered good 

Unsecured, considered good 

Ochers 

Secured, considered good 

Unsecured 

• Considered good 

- Considen:d doubtful 

Less: Allowance ro, •~peered credit loss 

.,.~,-I n~ for erode r•tei .. hle for lh< yea , ended March JI 2023•· 

16.42 

8.10 

6S9.07 

22.36 

705.95 

(22.36) 

683,59 

Particulars Out111ndlne for rnlfawln~ oeriods from due date of oavment 
Lesa than 6 6 months - I 1-2years 2 - 3 years More lhonJ 
months 1year lyears 

(ii llndispullld Trade m:civables consi"'Jed aon,I 495.77 122.60 41.25 5.41 18,57 
(ii) Undisputed T1nde Receivables - which have - - . 
significant increase in credit risk 
(iii) UndiSl)uted Trade Receivables - credit impaired S. 19 2.51 1.68 7.09 5.88 
(io) Disout•d Tonde Recclvnbles- considc~ l!ood - . . . . 
(v) Dispul<d Trade Rccd vablt11 - whicl1 hnv.: s il!,llificant . - . . 
htcrcASc ,n c:redi1 risk 
vi) o;..,.,n,,1 Tmcfe Rca:ivablcs - credit i,naai~ - . . 

'l"ohll 500.96 125.11 42,93 12,5(1 l4.4S 

tl;i•nl!l lb, nnda receivable fur 1l1<: vc.u cudcd Mnreh J I 2002• 
Pllrticulars Ou~11and111Jt fn r rou11..,,1m, 11c/j!lllJ from dtl.o dnrc or 1•n~nu,111 

Less th1n 6 6 months- I I • 2 year.. 2 - J ye11rs More lhan J years 
months year 

(il Undispu1eu T'"<lc ,ccciv•~le,; - oonsideted l!Ood 2,992_ 428.80 1149 1.8K 1916 
(ii) Undisputed Tmde Receivables - which have 
significant increase in credit risk 
(iii) L'ndi..,.,lcd Trade Receivables -credit immired 1200 2.28 16.n 705 0 13 
IM Diqmted Trade Rca:ivublcs- camid.ered 'l'1Dd . . . 
(v) Disputed Trade ReceiYRbles - which ha"" si~ificalll - . - . 
increase in credit risk 
(vi) Disputed Trade ReceiYRbles - credit impaired 12731 10626 48.06 . 
Tola! 16923 537 34 762.7 9.93 19.29 
• UnRdJuslcd c1cdlt In the custom<r aceount lo .,: ba:n odJUSled m the carhC51 oumandrng for the respechvc cuslOmer 

(f/ris .<pace ha, heen intentumally /ef/ blank) 

3•1 II 

1669 

441 15 

31981 

81!06 

(31981) 

49225 

Total 

683.60 

-
12.J5 

. 
-
. 

705.95 

Tola! 

4922S 

38.18 
. 
-

281 6J 
81206 
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DLF [mporio Llmlled 
Nares la the financial ,11temeno for lbe year Ollded Mai,:h JI, lOZJ 
(All lllffDUnts in r /11c:11, un/es.r u1hi:rwitt ,<tatr.u) 

IO Cash and ca,h equivalents 

Balances with banks 
In current account 

10.1 Chances in llabUllle, n l1lng rrom financing aetMtia 

Borrowings from rellled parties (includins interest) 
Total 

Bonowins, from banks and related parties (itlcludiag inten:st) 
Total 

11 Other bank balaneea 
In .Escrow account (held as margin money as security against borrowings) 
Bank depoiils with m.oturity more than 3 months but less 1han 12 months 

April I, 2022 Cub flows on 
account of 

mer11er 

J0,988. ll 
J0,98&.ll 

April I, 2021 Casfi flows ou 
account or 

1nerger (mer 
note 41) 

47,?14 06 m .aoJ 99) 

47,114 Uo (13,467 99) 

m,1., 1pac11 has been lntellllonalfy It}/ Monk) 

Morch 31, lt!ll 

8,7J 

8.73 

C.shflows Charged to 
Statement af 
Profit& Loa 

10,690,?4 2,1-18.81 
10,690.l~ l,148.81 

Cash Dows Charscd 10 

32.187 j7 

32,18757 

Statement of Profit 
&Loss 

2,493 6J 

2A93.64 

March 31, ?023 

187.58 
1,-130.l I 

1,617.79 

Man:h 31 . 2022 

8.30 

8.30 

March 31, 2023 

12.446. 
2?,4~6.69 

March 31, 2022 

30,98&.l2 

J0,9118 12 

Maleh 31, 2022 

209.96 

710.84 

920.80 
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DLF Emporio Limited 
Notes to tht financial statements for the year ended March 31, ZO?J 
(.~II um1111111., In r l11kh.1·, mtle.,s ot/i,rwise .,tate,IJ 

March JI, 2023 MruchJI 2022 
No. or shares Amount ,o or hares Amount 

12 Shure capital 
12.1 Equity sh•re ca11i1al 
(a) Authorised equity share capitol 

Eq1111y shares on IO oach 49,68,000 496.80 49,68,000 49680 

49,68,000 496.80 49,68,000 496 80 

(b) Issued, subJCribed •nd paid up 
Equi1y shares off IO each 46,45,367 464_,4 46.45.367 464 54 

46,45,367 464.S4 46,45.367 464 54 

(il Reconciliation nf number of equity shares outstonding at the beginnin~ und at the end of the year 
Al the begummg of the year 46,4S,.367 464.54 49.59.000 495 90 

241 21 

(272 571 

Issued duriug the year 24, 12, I 17 

Cancellation of shores on account of scheme of (27.25.750) 
amalgamation (lefer note 4 I I 
Ou1Standin11 at the end of the year 46,45,367 

(iii Righhl, preferences and restricllollS attached to equity shares 

464.54 46,45,367 464 54 

The Company l1as only one class of equi1y shares having a face value oft IO per share Each holder of equily share is entitled to 
one vote per share In the event of liquidotion of the C'ompony, the holders of equily shares will be entitled to receive remaining 
assets of rhe Company, after disrribution of all prefcn:ntiml amounls TI,e distrihurion will be in proportion to the n1unber of 
equily shares held by the shareholders . 

(iii) Oetoils ohhares held by holding company/shareholders/ promoter holdln& more lhan 5% sharehohliD& in the Company 

Name or the sbattholller 

Ec1ully ShnrCll 
DLF Cyber City Developer Limited and its nominees, 
holding company 

u or ltul\!:I "'i, hnldina 

46,4S.367 100 46,45,367 100 

(iv) The Compony has not issued 1111y equily shares issued pursuont to contract without payment being received m cash. allotted as 
fi~ly paid up by way of bonus issues and brought back during the last live years 

12.2 Preference share capital 
Authorised preference share capital 
12% non-cumulative redeemable preference shares oft 
100 each 
9% non-<:wnulative redeemable preference shares or, 
100 each 

U Other equity 
Reserves and surplus 
Securities premium 
Capital redemption reserve 
General reserve 
Capital reserve 
Retained earninb"' 

Equity instruments through other comprehensive income 

Nature anti purpose of other reserves 

Securities premium 

Morch 31, 2023 
No. ofshares Amount 

200 0.20 

8,000 8.00 

8,200 8.20 

March 31, 2022 
No of shares 

200 

8,000 

8,200 

Amount 

0.20 

800 

820 

Marchll,1023 March31 , 2022 

2,004.75 2,004 7S 
4.10 410 

13,125.00 13, 12S 00 
(239.62) (23962) 

64,333.68 55,5138S 
10,463.48 1,257 SI 

89,696.39 71,665 S9 

Securities premium represents premiwn received on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised m accordance with the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 

Capital redemption reserve 
The amount of money that rlie Company must keep when it buys back shares and which it cannot pay to shareholders as 
dividends: The capital redemption reserve is a non-distributable reserve 

General reserve 
Oalancc lying iu ge111:1HI ,es~t•" t"l)lestmts amount transferred ll'om debenture redemption reserve at die nme ol redempnon of 
non-convenible debentures. 

Capital reserve 
Capital reserve has been crealed pursuant to Scheme of Amalgamation of Richmond Park Property Management Servtces 
Limited with the Company (refer note 41) and is not available for distribution to the shareholders 

Equity imtruments through other comprehemivc Income 
The Company has elected to recognize c!tanges in the fair value of investments in equity securities in other comprehensive 
income ·n,ese changes are accumulated w1thm the equity mstruments through olher comprehensive income within equily Tiie 

Company transfers amounts from this reserve to retained camin115 when the relcvanl equity securities are de1ec.ig11i,~. 



77

DLF Emporio Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the yeur ended March 31, 2023 

{All a111011t11s 111 t lacs, 1111/ess otherwise statetl) 

14 Other financial liabilities 

Security deposits received from tenants 

15 Deferred lax liabilities (net) 

Deferred lax liabilities arising on account of: 

Deductmn claimed under Section 24(b) of the Income-la., Acl, I 96 I 
Rent straighllining 
Fair valuation of investments 
Financial liabilities measured at amonised cost 

Deferred lax assets arising on account of: 
Expenses to be allowed in subsequent years on payment basis 

Movement in deferred tu liabilities during the year ended March ll, 2023 

Particulars A1,ril I, 2022 

Assets 

Investment property 1,799.95 

Unbilled receivables 66.29 

Investments 379.84 

Liabilities 

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 4.26 

Expenses to be allowed in subsequent years on payment (28.89) 
basis 

Total 2,221.45 

Movement in deferred rax liabilities dunng the yeur euded March 31, 2022 

Particulars April I, 2021 

Assers 

Investment property 1,893 89 

Unbilled receivables 13969 

Investments 186 01 

Liabilities 

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 0 59 

EKpenses to be allowed in subsequent years on payment -
Total 2,220 18 

Recognised in statement 
of profit and loss 

(93.93) 

(38.27) 

-
(2.32) 

7.00 

(127.53) 

Recognised in statement of 
profit and loss 

(93 93) 

(73 40) 

J 66 

(28 89) 

(192 56) 

(/'Im .,pace ha., been inleJl/ionally lejl blank) 

March JI, 2023 March 31, 1022 

1,503.63 1,175 13 

1,503.63 1.175 I] 

March JI, 2023 Mmch 3 I, 2022 

1,706.02 1,799 95 
28.02 66 29 

J,177.H 379 84 
1.94 426 

(21.89) (28.89) 
4,891.42 2,22145 

Recognised in other March 31, 2023 
comprehensive income 

- 1,706.02 

- 28.02 

2,797,49 J,177,34 

- 1.94 

- (21.89) 

2,797.49 4,891.42 

Recognised in 0~1er March 3 I, 2022 
comprehensive income 

. 1.799 95 

- 66 29 

193,83 379 84 

426 

- (28.89) 

193,83 2,221 45 
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DLF Emporio Limiled 
Noles to the fin1nch1I stat<menrs for the yeor ended March JI, 2023 
(All un,011111., ;,, r l11c., u11/ess otlrerwise .<lrrtetl) 

16 Other non-current linbilities 
Deferred inco,m, 

17 Short-term bo1Towlngs 
Loan from relaced party (unsecured,• 

• Loan from relaced party carry interesc rate of S 50% pa as al March 31 , 2023 ( Mac ch 31 . 2022: 8.00% pa ) 
(refer note 39) 

18 Trade 11ayables 

Tora( outS1a11ding dues of micro enterprises and small enrerprises (refer note 33) 

Total outsranding dues of creditors orher chan micro eruerprises and small enterprises 

Ageing of trade payable as on March JI, 2023 

March JI, 2023 March 31 . 2022 

SJ.89 101 JJ 

53.89 101 33 

March JI, 2023 March 31, 2022 

20,860.00 29,060 00 
20,860.00 29,060 00 

Current 
March J l, 2023 March 31, 2022 

9.25 30 26 

41.77 508.31 

51,02 538 57 

Partlcula rs Outstanding for following periods from Invoice date Torol 
Nol due Less than I I -2 years 2-J years More than 3 year. 

year 
(il Micro enterprises and small enterpri~ - 9.25 . - 9.25 
(ii) Others 36.47 5.30 . - - 41.77 
(iii) Disputed dues - Micro enterprises and small - - . - - . 
(iv) Disputed dues• Others . . . - . . 
Total 36.47 14.SS . . - S1.02 

Ageing of trade payable as on March 3 I. 2022 

l'amcufm Ows\•ndini; for following periods from invoice date Total 
Not due Less than I I - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years 

year 
(il Micro enterprises and small enterprises 15 80 14 46 . 30,26 
(iii Others IOI 37 40S JI 163 - . 508 31 
liii) Disputed dues - Micro enterprises and small . . . . . 
(iv) Disputed dues - Others . . . . 
Total 117 17 41977 163 . 538 57 

Current 
19 Other financial llabllUies Mardi JI, 2023 March 31. 2022 

Interest accrued on borrowings (refer note 14) 1,586,69 1,928.12 
Security deposits received from tenants 5,908.61 6,029.5 I 
Capital creditors 21.02 36 34 
Other payables 11.71 32 14 

7,528.03 8,026.11 

20 Other current liabllllles March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Defi:rred income 88.86 70.09 
Advance from customers 38.07 6868 
Starutory dues payable 273.12 251 44 
Other payables (refi:r note 35 and 38) 630.10 191.66 

1,030.15 581 87 

21 Current tax liabilities (net) March JI, 2023 March 31 , 2022 
Provision for tax (net) 127 78 

1!7 78 
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DLF Emporio Limited 

Notu lo the linRncial statemcnb for the year ended :I-larch JI, 2023 

(Af/ m1101111ts i11 f lacs, 1111/ess otherwise stated) 

22 Revenue from operations 

O1,erating revenue 

Rental income• 

Revenue rrom contract with customers 

Disaggregated revenue information 

Service income 

Other operating revenue 

Other operating income 

Total revenue from contracl! with customers 

March 31, 2023 March 31. 1022 

14 ,34•1 81 10,451 88 

2,774 82 2,125 28 

64034 2 17 00 

J,415.16 2.34228 

17,759.97 12,794 16 

• lt includes f 143 27 lacs (March 3 1, 2022 t 258 19 lacs) an account of financial liabilily measured at amortised cost and f( I 87 74) lacs 

(March 31, 2022: f(360 07) lacs ) on account of rent straight lining 

During the current year, rental income oft Nil (March 31 , 2022: t 200 00 lacs) has nor been recognised on account of lack of certainly of 

collection of lease payments from the lessees 

Other disclosures required under Ind AS 115 "Revenue from contract,, with custo_m_e_r_s'_' ____ _ ___________ _ 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

u. Timing of revenue recognition 

h. 

Revenue recognised over period of time 3,388.92 2,342.27 

Revenue recognised at a poinr of rime 26.24 

J,415.16 2.342.27 

Contract balances 

Trade receivable from contracts with customers 232 39 26041 

Cu11llacl asseb I0J6 

Contract liabilities 22 22 

Trade receivables are generally on terms of7 to 30 days lnlcrest on delay in payments from customers (if any) is recognised as per the tenns o 

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from mainrenance sei,,ices and other operating income as receipt of consideration 

is conditional on successful provision of services Upon completion of services, the amounts recognised as contract assets are reclassified to 

trade receivables. 

Contract liabilities include advances received in respect of provision of maintenance serv_ic_e_s_to_ll_,e_re_n_an_t_s. _ ____ _______ _ 

March JI, 2023 March JI , 2022 

c. Significant changes in contract 3Sllels and contract liabilities during tlle year 

i) Movement or contract liabilities 

Amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year 

Amount received/ adjusted against contract liabilities during the year 

Revenue recognised liom performance obligations satisfied in previous years 

Amounts Included in contract liabilities at the end or the year 

22.22 

(22.22) 

2 39 

1983 

22.22 

ii) Movement or contract 8.'iSets 

Amounts included in contract assets at the beginning of the year 

Amount received/ adjusted during the year 

Amounts included io contract assets at the end of the year 

10.36 

10.36 

34.13 

(34 13) 

d. Set out below is the amount or revenue recognised from: 

C. 

Amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year 

Performance obligations satisfied in previous years 

Reconciling tbe amount or revenue recogni.,ed in statement or profit and loss with the contracted pri<:e 

Revenue as per contract price 3,415 16 

Adjustment (if any) 

3,115.16 

2,342.27 

2,3•12.27 

r. Performance obligation 

The performance obligation of lhe Company in case of maintenance services is satisfied over-time, using an input method lo measure 

progress towards complete satisfaction of the service. because the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by 

the Company The Company raises invoices as per the terms of the contracts, upon which the payment ,s due to be made by the tenants. 

As per lhe terms of the service contracts with the customers, the Company has right to consideration from customers in an amounl that 

direcdy corresponds with the value lo the customers ofll,e Compw1y's perronnance obligation completed tiU date Accordingly, the Company 

has used the practical expedient under Ind AS I 15 "Revenue from contracts with customers" and has disclosed information rclntn ,_..----

performance obligalions to lhe extent required under Ind AS 115 ~Do R / 0 <,,, 
LU ~ 

'-') ;/ 
O 0 .,. 



80

DLF Emporio Limited 

Notes to the financial stntemenls for the year ended March JI, 2023 

(All amounts In , lacs, unless otherwise !lated) 

2J Other income March JI, 2023 March 3 I, 2022 
I nlerest income on 

Bank deposits 55 28 257 89 
Income la.~ refund 282 85 
Others ll 78 27 26 

Dividend income (refer note 39) 0 67 0 67 
Unclaimed bRlances and excess provisions wrilten beck 323 22 3 25 
Miscellaneous income I 52 27 87 

675.Jl 316 94 

24 Cost of power, fuel and facility maintenance expenses March 31, 2023 March 3 I, 2022 

Cosl of electricity, heating, venrilation and air conditioning expenses 1,456 06 1,010 25 

Facility maintenance expenses 1,575 13 1,434 28 

J,031.19 2,444,53 

25 Finance COIis March 31, 2023 March 3 I , 2022 
Interest expense on : 

Loan from banks 1,360 16 
Loans from related parties (refer note 39) 2, 148.81 1,133 48 
Others (refer note 37) 246 0.35 

Financial liability measured al an1ortised cost 1S4.68 240-25 
Guarantee and bank charges 0.24 2.63 

2,306.19 2,736.87 

26 Depreciation expense March JI, 2023 March 3 I , 2022 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 237 I.SO 
Depreciation on investment (1!:l!pcrty 843 74 8S0.68 

846.ll 852, 18 

27 Other expenses March 31, 2023 March 31 , 2022 
Rates and taxes 6894 9030 
Advertisement and publicity 48442 230 25 
Repair and maintenance - building 25 09 496 
Bad debts written off 5 68 
Insurance 63 39 52 00 
Payment lo auditors (refer note 27.1) 30 68 24.87 
Legel and professional fees 16 15 119.91 
Corporate social responsibility expense (refer note 38) 15034 19845 
Business support service charges 72 12 78.01 
Provision for doubtful debts 741 186 SJ 
Provision for impainnent of financial asset 112.41 
Miscellaneous expenses 022 

1,030.95 991 18 

Mim:h JI, 2023 March J l, 2022 
27.1 Auditor's remuneration• 

Audit fees (including limited reviews) 2003 20 02 
Ta.~ audit fees 3.68 3 68 
Other services 6.00 I 00 
Reimbursement of expenses 097 0 17 

30.68 :!-187 
• exclusive of applicable tu.res 
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DLF Emporio Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(All amounts in t' lacs, unless otherwise stated) 

28 Tax expense 

Current tax 

Deferred tax credit/charge 

March 31, 2023 

2,528.54 

(127.52) 

2,401.01 

March 3 I, 2022 

1,696.86 

(192.56) 

1,504.30 

The major components of income tax expense and the reconciliation of expense based on the domestic effective tax rate of 29.12% 
(March 31. 2022: 29.12%) and the reported tax expense in profit or loss are as follows: 

Particulars 

Accounting profit before income tax 

At country's statutory income tax rate of29.12% (March 31, 2022: 29.12%)(A) 

Adjustments 

Non deductible expense for tax purposes: 

Expenses relating to income chargeable under "Income from House Property" and "Profit 
and Gains from Business and Profession" 

Expenses allowable for tax purposes: 

Standard deduction under Section 24(a) of the lncome•tax Act, 1961 

Rental income not recognised on account of lack of certainty of collection from lessees 

Deduction claimed during the year in respect of rental income not recognised in the previou 

Others 

Tax related to earlier years 

Total adjustment (B) 

Income tax expenses recognised in the books (A+B) 

29 Earnings per equity share 

A Earnings attributable to equity shareholders 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (in numbers) 

Nominal value of equity share (t) 

Earnings per equity share (t) 

• Basic and Diluted 

March 31, 2023 

t 1,220.85 

3,267.51 

561.49 

(1,230.50) 

(77.19) 

(120.30) 

(866.50) 

2,401.01 

March 31, 2023 

8,819.83 

4,645,367 

l0.00 

189.86 

March 31, 2022 

6,086.34 

1,772.34 

463.59 

(993.06) 

261.43 

(268.04) 

1,504.30 

March 31, 2022 

4,582.04 

4,952,986 

10.00 

92.51 
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DLF Emporio Limited 

Noces to the financial statement.i for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amou11fs in ( Ines, u11/ess otl,erwise smted) 

29 B Rmio <U\lll)•S1s and its elements '~b~ on J'c!Cill ln:LllellLS of schedule Il l) 

Ratio Numerator 

(a) Current ratio C urren! Assets 

(b) Debr-equily rario Borrowings (including in1erest 
accrued) 

(C) Debi service coverage ra:io Profit after taK tdeprecia11ont 
finance cosls+loss on sale of 
investment property 

(d) Return on equity rdlio Prolil after tax 

(e) Trade receivables turnov.,r ratio Revenue from operations 

( I) Net capital lurnover rali:> Revenue from operations 

(g) Nel profit ratio Prolit after lax 

(h) Return on capital employed Profit before lait + finance cost 

(i) lnventOf1' turnover ratio Not APPiicabie 
(i) Trade pavables turnover ralio Not Applicable 
(kl Return on investment Not Applicable 

• Ratios are upto 2 decimal places 

Denominator M11rch 31, 2023• 

Current Liabilities 0.09 

Total equity 025 

Finance cos1s t Principal repayments I 14 
(excluding prepaymenls) 

Averageoflotal equity 0 11 

Average trade receivablts 30 21 

Working capital (Current assets-current (066) 
liabilities) 

Revenue from operations 0 50 

Capital employed (Total 012 
equity+borrowings+net deferred lax 
liabilities) 

Not Applicable Not Apolicable 
Not Apolicable Nor Apolicable 
Not Aoolicable Nol Applicable 

March 31, 2022• % chan11.e Reasoo for change by more than 25% 

0 05 8'111 ¾ I ncreaSt! ,s mamlv on accoun1 of repaymem of 
loan during lhe year ended March. 3 l . '.!023 

0 43 (42 05)% Decrease is mainly on acwunl of repaymenl or 
loan dunng !he year ended March, 31. 2023 

1 25 (49 37 )% l)ecrease is mainly on accounl of higher 
repaymenr of borrowings 

0 06 71 10% Increase in mainly on accounl ofmcreas~ in 
profit during lhe year ended March 31 .2013 

19 20 57 37% Increase is mainly on accoum of' increase m 
trade receivable balances as at March 3 1. ~013 

(0 35) 8864% Iner= is memly on account of increase m 
ren1al income 

0 36 3867% lncre!I.Se is mainly on account of increase in 
profil alier tax during the year ended March 31 
2013 m lieu of increase in rental income and 
reduc11on 111 finance cost 

008 37 45% Increase is mainly on account of incrense m 
profil aller tax during the year cnde<l March 31 
2023 in lieu of' increase in rcnlal income and 
reduction ,n finance cost 

Not Applicable Nol Applicable 
Not Applicable Not Applicable 
Not Apolicablc Not Applicable 

oRio 

~n~ LJJ I --: 
U-, 
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DLF Em1>0rio Limited 
Noles lo lhc financi•l sllltemenl• for the year ended Morch JI, 2023 
(All 111Ho11111s i11 r lacs, 1111/ess o//terwise stated) 

JO Fair value disclosures 
i) Fair vnlues hierarchy 

Financial assers and linanc,al liab1il1ies measured al fair value in rho s1a1emen1 of ti11a11c1al posilion are grouped 11110 lhree levels of a tair value hierarcll)' 
Tl1e rhree levels are defined based on lhe observability ofsignificanr mpuls 10 !he meas11reme111, as follow s: 

Level I : Quoted prices (1111adJus1ed) m active markers fm financial insnuments 
Level Z: The fair va lue of fin.anc1al mstrumems 1ha1 are nol rraded in an active marker 1s derennmed usin~ valuation lechmques which maximise lhe use 
of observable marker data rely as linle as possible 011 e11tiry specific estimates 

Level 3: lfone or more of the significant i11puts is not based on observable marker dara. rhe inslnunent is included 111 lcvcl 3 

(ii) Valuation technique used lo determine fair value 
Fair value ofmves11ne111111 equir~ 111s1n11nenrs have been detennined based on discounted cash flow method (mcome approacli) 

(iii) Investment in tqult> instruments 
Pmrtll'.uliirs .\1110 ,mc 
/\s at ,\ pnl I, 201 1 74,796 58 
Gnil'll(loss) recognised in other comprehensive income 832.05 
As at March 31 , 1022 75,628 63 
Purchase of invesrmenCs -
GdiJI recognised in other comprehensive income IZ,008.46 
As al :\lnrd, .I I, 2023 87.ta7.0') 

(iv) Fi■■ni:ial instruments by category 

Particulars March JI , 2023 Murch 31 , 2022 

Level Cnrrvin~ value Amortised cost Level CanvinR value Am0<1ised cost 
Financial assets 
Other financiol assets Level 3 l70.44 170."4 Level 3 165.60 165.60 
Total linoncial assets 170.44 170.44 165 60 165.60 
Financial liabilities 
Se<:uritv denosits Level 3 l,503,63 1.503.63 Level 3 1.175 13 1.175 13 
Total financial liablll tie.s 1,503.63 1.503.63 1.175 13 1.175 13 

The above disclosure is presented for non-current financial assets and non-cUJTent financial liabilihes_ 
The management assessed 1ha1 cash and cash equivalems, olilef bank balance, trade receivables, other current financial assets, rrade payables and olher 
current financial liabilities approxil11llte their carrying amotmts lari,:ely dne lo the short-tenn 1naturilies of these instruments TI1e fair value or rhe financial 
assets and liabilities is included at the amonnt at which die mstrument could be exchanged in a current trans.aclion betweeo willing parties, other tl1an in a 
forced or liquidation sale 

31 Financial risk management 
i) Financial instnaments by category 

F111u11ctUI l11>1111111c11ts. 1:1\IT}I IO~ value ,eono..mrs the besl i:.,111nnh:S 11r rair values 
Particulars March JI, 2023 March 31. 2022 

Amortised cost Amortised cost 
Financial assets 
Trade receivables 683.59 492 25 
Cash and cash equivalents 8.7J 8 30 
Orher bank balances 1,617.79 920.80 
Other firumcial assets l74,?1 169.JS 
TollJI 2,484.JJ 1.590.73 
Financial liabilities 
Borrowings including interest accrued 22,446.69 30,988 12 
Trade payables 51.02 538 57 
Security deposits 7,412.24 7,204 64 
Other financial liabilities 32.73 68 48 
Total 29.942.68 38.799.81 

ii) Risk Management 
Tiie Company's activities expose it to marker risk, liquidity risk and credit risk The Company's board of directors has overall responsibiliry for the 
establishment and oversight of the Company's risk managemenl framework This nore explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how 
the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial slatements 

(l1ris space has heen mten/lnnallv l~/i hlank) 
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DLF Emporio Limited 
'-lotes to the linnnci•t statements for the yeor ended M:1n:h JI, 2023 
(.·t /1 amow,ts i11 r lacs, 1111/ess othenvise stated) 

A) Credit risk 
Credi! risk is lhe nsk thal a cm111terpar1y fails lo discharge its obligation to the Company The Company's exposu1e to c1edi1 risk is intlucnced mamly by 
cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and tinanc,al assets measured at ammtised cost The Company cont111uously monito,s defoulrs of customers 
and other counterpartles and inco,µorates this info11na1ion inlo its credil risk controls C1edi1 risk related lo cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is 
manag.ed b} only accepting highly 1ated banks and dive1sifying bank deposits Other tinancial assets meusutcd at amorlized cost includes security 
deposits and 01hers Credit nsk related to those other financial assets is mam,ged by ,nonitnrmg the recove,abili ty of such amon,us continuously. while at 
lhe same rime mremal control syslem m place ensure the amounts are wllhrn defined limits 

a) Credit risk management 

( rcd,r rak rcJtlllg 

The Company assigns the followmg credit 1ati11gs to each class of financial assets hased on the assumptions, 111puts and factors spec,tic to the class of 
A Low credit nsk on financial repor1111g date 

B: Moderate credit risk 

C High credit risk 

The Company provides for expected credit loss based on the following: 

Asset group Basis of catee;orisation l'rovi~ion ro,· e111enscs credit loss 
Low credit risk Cash and cash eqllivalents, other 12 month expected credir loss/life time expected credil loss 

bank balances, loans, trade 
receivables and othe1 tinencial 
assets 

Modernle credit risk Other financial assets 12 month expected credit loss/life lime expected credit loss 

High credit risk Trade receivables Life time espected credit loss 

Based on business environment in which the Company operates, a def.iult 011 a linencial asset is considered when the counter pally fails to make 
payments within the agreed lime period as per contract. Loss rates reflecting defaults are based 011 actual credit loss experience and considering 
differences between current and historical economic conditions. 

Assets under credit risk -

C r,dir ruling Pur tkul1rs March JI, 2023 March 31 , 2022 

A: l.olY credit risk Cfl.!h and cash equivalents. other henk balance . louns. trade receivahles, 90,099.06 76,899 55 
other assets and other financial assets 

8 · Mod•r:tte credil risk Oth.:r financial assets . . 
C- Hlyb = dit risk Trade receivables 22.36 319 81 

b) Credit risk exposure 
Provision for exp<?cted credit lo .. es 
The Company provides for expecled credit loss based on lifetime expected credit loss mechanism for financial assets 

Mnrcb J I, ?013 
Particulan Gross carrying amount E,pected eredit losses Car111ing amount net or provision 

Investments 87,637.09 . 87,637.09 
Trade receivables 70S.95 22.36 68J.S9 
Cash and cash equivalents 8.73 . 8.73 
Other bank balance 1,617.79 . 1,617.79 
Other financial assets 174.22 . 174.22 

Mun:!, JI 2022 
Paniculars Gross carrying amount Expected credit losses Carrying amount net of provision 

Investments 75,628 63 . 75,628.63 
Trade receivables 812 06 319 81 492 25 
Cash and cash equivalents 8 30 . 8 30 
Olher bank balance 920 80 . 92080 
Other financial assets 169 38 . 169 38 

In respect of trade receivabfos, the Company considers provision for lifetime expected credit loss Given the nature of business operations. the 
Company's trade receivables has low credit risk as the Company holds security deposits equivalents ranging from three to six months rentals Funher 
historical trends indicate any shor1fall between such deposits held by the Company and amounts due from customers have been ne11ligible 

The credit risk for cash deposits with banks and cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible, since lhe collnterparties are reputable banks with ltigh 
quality external credit ratings Also, no impairment loss has been recorded in respect of fixed deposits that are with recoJ!llized commercial banks and are 
not past due 1l1e carrying amounts disclosed above are the Company's maximum possible credit risk exposure ,n relation these deposits 

Other financial assets being sccurily deposits. investment and others are also due from seve1al counter panies and based on historical information about 
dcfnulta from the counter parties. 111,111a~c111c11l "u11side1s lhe q11:1lity llf~rreh ~ssets that are not past due lo be good 

B) Liquidity risk 
Prudent liquidity rislc. rnanasemenl implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequale 
amonnt of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due Due to the nature of the business, the Company maintains nexibility in funding by 
maintaining availability under committed facilities 

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash 11 
Company takes into account the liquidity of the market in wbich the entity operates In addition, the Company's liquidity management poli 
proJecting cash flows in major cum:nc1es '»!?~~~~~ I of liquid assets necessary to meet these. monitoriull balance sheet I •I / 
against internal and external regulatory ia: debt financing plans --• ),:, 

J ·::-.: 
-f - • 

fr ✓ ........ ___ ,,......,,,, 
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DLF Em11orio Limited 
:'<oles lo the lin•ncial statements fol' the ycNr ended Mnrch 31, 2023 
(.-Ill nmo1111ts i11 r Ines, 1111/ess otlterwise stated) 

Marurities of linnnciul liabilities 
The tables below analyse the compauy ', financial liabrlities inro relevanl maturily based on their comractual maturities for all non-derivative financial 
The amounts disclosed in the rable are the corrtractrral undiscounted cash llows Balances due within 11 months equal their carrying balauces as the impact of discow1ting is not s1gnitican1 

March JI, 2023 Less than I 1-S year More than 5 year.i Total 
Vfflr 

No n-derivative., 
Borrowings including interest 22.~6.69 . 22,-'46.69 rr:ulc payables 51.02 . . 51.02 S.:currly deposits 5,929.68 1,63.UJ 7,564.51 Ollu.,· llr utl~r,11 liabrlities l?.7.J . - 32.7-' Tu,ul 28.-160.IJ 1.634.SJ . 30,094.96 

March 31, :?0ll less than I year 1-5 year More than 5 years Total 
Non-i!envmives 
l!\tnll\yt ll including interest 30,988 12 - . 30,988 12 rratfll payables 564.30 564 JO 
S.:cm ny deposits 6,059 10 1,229 17 108 71 7,396 98 
Cllh<!t finaucial linll1litJcS 42 75 . - 42 75 
Tolal 37,654 27 1.229 17 108-71 38,992 15 

C) Market Risk 
Markel risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash Hows of a fiuancial inslrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rare risk and price ,isk. Financial instnrments affected by market risk include fixed rate borrowings. fixed deposits and FVTOCI investments 

a) Interest rnte risk 
lnlerest rat~ risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates The Company's exposure to lhe risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily lo the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates 

i) Liabilities 
flllere.,·t rate risk l!.tpo.mre 
TI1e Company has ooly fixed rate borrowings which are carried at amo11ised cost They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in IND 
AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the fi,ture cash flows will Huctuate because ofa change in market interest rates 

ii) Assel!i 
The Company's fixed deposits, 11111:reS! bcarinn security del)Osits and loans are carried fixed rate Therefore, noJ subject to mterest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying mounl nor lhe future cash Hows will Ructuutc b,:csuse ofa cltanb,e in marker 1nterost rates 

b) Price risk 
The Company's exposure to price risk arises from investments held and classified as FVOCI To manage the price risk arising from investments, the Company diversifies its portfolio of assets 

.5en.'ii/1vity ana(y.tis 

Profit or loss and equity 1s sensitive to higher/lower prices of instnunents on the Company's profit for the pcriods=:.,.·~ ~~-=~--~-~~=­Parliculars Mattb JI, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Price sensitMty 
Price - increase by 500 basis points (5%) 

Price - decrease by 500 basis l)Oints (5%) 

32 Capital management 
(a) Risk management 

----------------
4,381 85 

(4,381 85) 

3,781 43 

(3,781 43) 

The Con1pu11y's capital mu11agc1ncnt 11bJcc1,ves Jre to eos1,rc lbe Company'• abil ity III conlmue as n l,'<IIIIS cQiu,,:m ns well as to provide a balance bciw.:en linanci3f ncx,b1lit) and bal(llr~i: !1110-et dlfo,cncy In dci~inin11 its npilal struclun:, the Company consrders the robustness of nnure cash flows, po1c111 ial Jundini: reqrnremc,us ror growth cpportruuties and acquisitions, the JO I of capital and ease of access to fundmg ources 
Management assesses the Company's capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing struclure while avoiding excessive leverage This takes into account the subordinoUon levels of the Company's varions classes of debt TI1e Company manages rlie eapiral s tnm ure and makes adJustments to it in the light of change. in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets In order to ma,omm or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders. return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt 

Pa rticulan 
March J l. 2023 Man:11 31, 1011 

l'lltrtl llnrTOI\ iny,g • 22,446.69 30,988.1 2 
l ess Cash and cash equivalent (8 73) (8 30) 
Ntt dobt 22,437.96 30,979 82 
Tot:11 equity •• 90,160 93 72,130 13 
Ntt debt to equily ratio 0.25 043 

• Total borrowings - long term borrowings+ short term borrowings+current man,rities of loan term borrowings• interest accn,ed 
•• Total equity= equity share capital + other equity 

i 



86

DLF Emporio Limited 
~otc.s to the finwnci11I statements for lhc year ended ~larch J l. ?023 
(.~II ,111wun1.-.· ;,, l lu,·s, 11nln-s t1lhenvU·e .,-rtJteJ) 

JJ Disclosure under the Mic10. Small a11d \.le<lium E1Ut:rpns~s Development Act. :!006 r•MSMED Act. 2006") is as under: 
Particular3 

JI Jhc 11d11.cipal nmounl 11d 111c ,me.11?St ilue 1he1.tou ten1t11nlf1p 1J lll)!1td m rmy i Upplict 11.s at the end of ..::-cch Oki.'Out1Jh11:; 
),:UI 

111 1hc, mou111 of m1cre;1 patd b the buy>.r m letms ol' ScutJoo 16. nlun • with the ,1111owu, of the PJl)'ln<TII rrutde In 
the .uppl1c1 beyond the ppoirucd ILiy dur1n~ •• h •o.;ouu111111 t••1. 

11 i) lhc •mount o mtctc•1 due nd Pl •bit: fo1 Iha porlod of dd•> 111 ,nnkms pAyn1cnr \ which'""° ban J)llld blll 
~-ontl the appointed day du, ins the yea,) bur withoul adding the 1111erest specilied under this Act 

I\' 1 the amount of interest nccrned 11nd 1cmainmg unpaid ar 1he end of each accoununy ycac :md 

v) the amounl of fm1hei interest remammg due il.nd payable even m the succeeding years. umil such date when 1he 
inreresl dues as above arc acru•lly paid to 1he smoll enlerpr isc, for the purpose of disallowonce as a deductible 
c.~pcndirurc under Section 13 

March JI, 2023 March 31~ 1022 

9.25 30 26 

Nil Ntt 

:1111 Nrl 

Nil Ntl 

Nil Ntl 

The above infonnalion reMarding Micro, Small and Medium Enteq>rises hns been detcnnined ro the extent $1.JCh im11ies have been identified on the b11.sis of 
rnfonnorion availoble with dte Company The same has beeu relied upon by rite auditors 

~ Segment reporting 

The Comp,my i,; primarily engaged in rhe business of leasing of oonsbucted propetties (including provrsron of linked seivices like facility manogement services) 
which is considered lo be d1e only rcporblble business segment. Further, the 1cvenues of the Complllly are derived primarily from leasing of real estate and no 
customer reprcsenls sales of more than 10% of total sales Also, the Company operates wilhin India and docs 001 have operations in economic environmems 
with different risks and 1etun1s Hence, it is considered ope1atir1g in single geographical SCb'TTlent Accordingly. there arc no other separate reportable segments 
m tenns of Ind AS I0K 011 "Operating Segme11r" 

JS Contingent li ■billties and commitments (to the extent not provided for) 

A. Claim •l?lll11" tit• ('IJmpnnr 1111, ud<q11wh!t,l~etl a., debts 
Pnrllt ul"r• March 31, ?023 MarchJI , WlJ 
f11 comc las (AsscSimcnt year 2009-1 0)• l,OJ6.70 l, 0<16 70 
lncoJ!lC rax (A,sessment year 2018-!9)•• 51.99 SI 99 
Income lax (Assessment year 2020-21 ) ... 7.7l . 
Sm-., cc tax (for Financial Year 2007-08 to 2009·10) - 76707 

Servi o lax (for financial Year 2011-12)' - 60,76 
S.•nMe lax (for Financial Year 1014•15 ro 2017• 277.92 27792 
Good< & St:Tvice Tax (for Financial Year 2018-19 7.04 704 
Oann1ul from South Delhi ~hm1c1pal ColJIOtaUOII 28,51 28 SI 
Tomi 1,419.88 2,.23999 

(•1 lneome Tu 

*Assenmeat Year 20CJ9.10 
The Assessing Officer ('AO') had made disallowance of interest under Section 24{b) ofrhe lrtcome•lax Ac~ 1961. lax impact of which was f 1,046 70 lacs 
The Company had preferred an appeal before Commissioner of h1eome Tax (Appeals) ('CIT(A)'). who furthCJ enhanced rhe disallowance Against this. the 
Company filed an appeal before Income Ta.x Appellate Tribunal ('ITAT'). who restored rite maller 10 file of Ld CIT(A) for issuing a fresh notice a11d decide 
afresh in accordtnce with law, after verifying the facts The matter is currently pending before CIT (A) 

•• A!Jessment Vear 2018-19 
The Company claimed deduction under Section 80G of the Acl being 50% of Corporate Social Responsibilicy payment made to registered trust which was 
disallowed by lite AsseSiing Officer (' AO'), lax impact of which was f 51 99 lacs The Company has filed 11ppeal before the CIT(A) under National Faceless 
Appeal Centre (NF AC) which is pending for disposal 

••• Assusmenl Vear 2020-21 

The Assessing Of!icu has made disallowance of deduction u/s 80G of the Act and adopted income HS per intimation u/s 143( I) of the Act instead of merged 
compuhlrio11 filed by the Company pursuant to merger of Richmond with the Company. ta., impact of which was f 7 72 lacs The Company has tiled appeal 
before the CIT(A) under National Faceless Appe•I Centre (NFAC) which is pending for disposal 

Further, tlte Contpany has received an erroneous refund of t 482 79 lacs detennined by the Assessing Officer in the compolation sheet ann«ed to the 
assessment order possed under Section 143(3) read with Secrio11 260 of lhe Income-tu., Ac~ 1961 _ Consequently, lite Company has filed an applicalion with the 
Assisrant Commissioner of l11con1e 18:t. New Delhi ("ACIT') requesting ACIT lo intimate the Company on the mode of rcmilling back such refund Pending 
response on mode of refund, the Company has disclosed the same as other· payables unde1 rhe head "Other cunent Liabilities· (refer note 20) 

(/111.< ,pace has been inremw,ral/y leji blank) 
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DLF Emporio LimitetJ 
Note1 to the financial statements ror the ye:1I· em.let.I 1\-l111ch JI, 20:ZJ 
(All unwunr.,· in ( la,•s. 1111/e.'i,'i nthcrwlse ,\'tuled) 

(b: Service Tax/ GST 

Ourmg the em lier yeAIs. the Company receivt:t.1 tm or<le, passed by Conumssione1 of Service tax demanding service 1a:-c liability amounting to t 827 83 lacs 
{which constitutes se1vicc tax liability amounting tot 413 92 Ines along with I000:'o pcnalry amounting to t 413 92 lacs) and mterest thereon. on denial / 
recovery of cenvar credir av;uled (being the c1ed1t of service rax paid mI co11st1uct101I services) & utili,.cd ag~inst outpul service i e rental i11co111e fo1 tinancial 
Year 2007-08 to 1009-10 and financinl ye.,, 2011-12) The Comp(lny had fil ed an ,1ppeal :ilong wi111 itity npplical1on with respect to the nfore><1i<l Commissioner 
of Se1v1ce tax's order before Customs. Excise & Service Tax Appel l al~ T11bu1111I (CESTAT) 

Owing the previous year, CESTAT had allowed appeal & passed the order in favow of the Compa11y. •Kainsr which tl1e depa11ment has nOI filed any fu11her 
appeal as on now Since the rime limit of filing furthe1 appeal has lapsed, cantineent liability in IespecI o( the al.Jove case has nor l>een considered 

Ourmg the pIevIous yeru. rhe Company had 1cce1ved demand-cum-show cause 1totice issued by Commissioner C..:nt1 ,1 I Tax. Aud,I - ti. Delhi. who has 
dem311ded service tn ., on elecrricity 1:harg~s bi lled fm 111temal lightiny: 10 tenants amounting to l 277 92 la..:s pcttaimng lo tinoncial yeaI 2.014-15 10 .!0 17-18 (till 
June .2017) Th1: mutter 1s under adjudication 

Du1i11g the previous yeai . the Comp;my 1eceived Show Cause i\'0Iice issued by Assisranl Com111iss1011e,, GST. Ddhi. who demanded? 7 04 lacs (OST along 
with Penalty & lntc1cs1. as quantified) 011 the grounds ofsho11 payment ofta• in comp•rison ofGSTR I & GSTR JB filed The m•ner is unde, adjudication 

Based on the advice from independent tax experts, the Company is confident lhat the additional ta..x so demRnded will not be susIaim:d on lhe completion of 
appellale procecdinys ancJ accordingly, no provision lu,s been made in these financial statements 

(c) Demand from South Delhi Municipal Coq,orntion ("SDMC") 
Du,ing the previous year, the Company received demand notice under section 154 of Delhi Municipal Corporation Acl, 1957 amounting lo r 41 54 lacs from 
SDMC on account of electricity lax on open access units consumed by the Company till June-21 Basis the opinion obtained from le!l"l «pert, the Company 
has paid undisputed amount of l' 13,03 lacs 10 SDMC and requesred dep11tment 10 reassess the elec~icity hlK dues and drop the demnnd notices No fw1her 
response has l>een received fiom department ns yet. 

(dJOthers 
(i) During the carlie, years, the Company hod received several notices from South Delhi Municipnl Corporation ("SDMC") directing the Compt111y to remove 
displays, LEDs and adve,1isemen1s in its mall 011 account of them being in violation of Delhi Municipal Corµoration Acr, I 957, Advertisement Bye-laws, Delhi 
Preven1ion of Defacement of Proper,y Act, 2007 and the Advertisemenr Policy, 2017 The Company had filed a writ petition before High Court of Delhi 
whereby the matter was taken up fo1· hearing for deciding the interim reliefs whereby the Company was required to file a11 application before SDMC for seeking 
pcnnission to display R.dve11isements and furnish fixed deposit with lien c1earcd in fRvour of Commissioner. SDMC for the amount indicated by Corporation in 
terms of order Further, SDMC was also reslramed from raking any coen:ive measures under Delhi Prevention of Defacement of Property Act, 2007 during the 
pendency of the writ pe1i1io11 
Du,ing the previous year, the Company has filed an application to SDMC seeking pemussion to display advertisements along with creation of fixed deposit or 
? l lO 29 lacs (March J l, 2022: ? 105 45 lacs) with lien marked in favour ofConunissioner SDMC which has been disclosed as "Other Fint111cial Assets" in the 
financial statements The matter is currently pending disposal . 

(ii) During the earlier years, South Delhi Municipal ColjlOration ("SDMC" ) issued a public notice prohibiting all the hospitals and malls falling within ,ts 
jwisdictiou from charging fee for the facility of pukini; wirhin its premrses Consequau 10 this, Vasant KunJ Commercial Complex Association (of which the 
Company is• member) ("Association") filed a wnt Petition before Hou'ble Delhi lligh Court which disposed of the same with a direction to charge parking fee 
@ t 20 per hour , while directing SDMC 10 decide the matter by passing a speaking order SDMC vide order dated August I 0, 2017 upheld its public notice 
prohibiting the charging of parking fees in the mall Ab,ainst the said orde, dated August 10,2017, an instant Writ Perilion was again filed before Hon'ble Delhi 
High Court by the Association. The Houble Court has passed an obsolute stay order in dus case till the pendency of Writ Petition and has allowed the 
petitioner to ch11'1!• parking fee at t 20 per hour within the jurisdiction of SDMC Accordingly, the maner stands adjourned for rinal Rrb'lllllenrs The 
management believes that the revenue recognition from parking income is appropriate and no adverse impact is likely to arise in the financial slatements in this 
1P.11~rrf 

Based on the advice from independent lax experts/ lel!lll expert t111d development on the appeals/proceedings, d1e Company rs confident that the additional 
tax/demand will not be sustained on the completion of appellate proceedings/ proceedings end accordingly, no provision has been made in these financial 
statements 

l'wther, as per the terms of the Share Purchase and Shareholders' Agreement ('SPSHA'), apart from other indemnities, DLI' Limited has undertaken to 
indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Company against all losses incurred or suffered by the Company arising out of direct/ indirect ta• demands upto or 
prior to December 26, 2017 (i e. closing dare) Accordingly, our oflolal con1ingen1 liabilities of 'l' l,419 88 lacs as ar Man:h JI, 2023 (Man:h JI, 2022: f 
2,239 99 lacs), l'l ,324 62 lacs (March JI , 2022: ~ 1,152 45 lacs) being contingent liability pertaining 10 period up to the Closing date has been undertaken 10 be 

8, Guaranteeo 

Particular, March JI, 2023 Man:h 3 L 2022 
C'ol]lOmtc guornntce issued by the Company on behalf of DLF Cybcr C"ity 0.:vtlupc~ Limited 38,303 26 42,771 15 

C. Copital commitments 
Estimated RR1oun1 of comminncnls on copital account as on Mruch 31, 2023 is 'l' l 58 47 lacs (March JI, 2022: l' 22 48 lacs) 

J6 A In the opinion of the board of direclors, current assets anti other financiol asseIs hnve a valut on realization in the ordina1y course of business at least equal to 
the RRl0unl at which they arc slated in the Balance Sheer and provisions of all known liabilities have also been made 

J6 B All loans, guarantees and securities as disclosed in respective schedules/ notes an: given for business purposes 

J7 The Company and its g,oup companies have given corporate guaIantees to banks for availment or loans and believes tlun fherc is no service rende,ed and thus 
there is no GST obligations During the year. audit have been conducted and observed that there could be GST obligntion on the said guarantees Based on 
advice of taJ< «perts. the management obtained an ann 's length assessment report from t111 extern&! expert only fo1 the sole purµose of discha1sing payment of 
OST. if •uy •uJ ••.01Jiu~ly, ltas de11usilerl OST 111111t.sa11I C:Os give11 we r July 01 , 2017, •lnng wiTh inr,re~r nn ~ 07 1,r., rlurinc m• yeor nn vnlun,.,y h•<I< 
to avoid any litii:ation and accorrl ingly the payment ofinreresl sholl not be construed as an irregularity in the deposit ofGST on the porr of the Company 
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DLF Emporio Limited 
Notes to che nnunclal statements for the yenr ended March JI, 202J 
( Ill amuunt:.· fn ( ,.., ,. • ,,,,fcq uU1(!f1t'1 .\IUlcdl 

JS In ,1ccardn11 co \111lh the p,o,~lan, uf Secnon 135 of the Componies ,-\cl. 201:1 (' the Act'), the Board of Directors of rhe Company h•d constituted • Corpno,u, 
Social Responsibrlity (CSR) Coinmittee In tenns with the provisions of the said Act. required dermis of CSR amount is as follows. 

Porticul■ rs March JI, 202J MR1ch JI. 2022 
(3' Amflunr i'.:iuural to be r,p,,111 b\ 111< ( •"1ur.111) 150 j4 198.45 
lht Amount 1,n1d 11'1 the r,,muno,· on: 

11 c·oustructionl1K:quisirion of any asset . 
ii) For purposes other than (iJ above (1efe1 m below) 

• J)C!'llltD111Jl 10 cnrren( WA< ) 04 6.79 
• 1•01n111irlp. to 11rc:vibU\ )U,!'> • Jliortlilll 191 66 

(c) Shonf•ll (u11111,n1J ro, rhc ycllt at lhc: ye~r-end • 14730 191 66 
i(Jl Total or ll!cvious Yca1'S sf,onfoll ruMnenll . 
I c) Reason for shonfall rertains to Perta ins to ongoing 

oneoin~ proJccts l)fOJCCIS 

(f) Nature of CSR activities Donation made Donation made for 
ro, em1uonment env1ronmcn1 

sustainability sustainability 
project and project and Amn>RI 

ammnl welfare welfare 

l~I Detail oJ'n!lated uartv tl'IIJbllCtioo< in relation 10 CSR c,nc:nJilure as ucr 1'1:IC:VMI accowmng sla• 

Contribution to: 
OLF Fiumdmfoll 194.70 6.79 

•subsequent to year ended March 31, 2023, the Company has transferred the shortfall (unspent) nmounl pertaining 10 Uie respective year lo die unspent CSR 
accounl(s) in acconlance witl1 the Act read with Companies (ColJ)orate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules. 2014 as amended 

39 Related party disclosuroo 
lnfonnation required lo be disclosed unde, Ind AS 24 " Related party disclosures" 

i) Related parties where control e,islll 

a) Ultimote holding company 
DLF Cyber City Developers Limited (till March 23, 2022) 

b) Holding Company 
Richmond Park Property Merurgement Services Limited (the immediate holding company)(lill Morch 23, 2022) 
DLF Cyber City Developers Limited (w c.f. March 24, 2022) 

cl Entity having joint control over the ultl11111te holding company/ holding compony 
DLF Limited 
Reco Diamond Private Limited 

d) Additional related party ■ s pet' the Companies Act, 2013 
Holding company orthe entity having joint control over the Company's ultimate hnldlng company/ holding company 
Rajdhani Investments & Agencies Private Limited 

ii) Related partiH with ffhom there were transaction• during the year 
a) Ultimate holding company 

DLF Cyber City Developer.; Limited 

bJ Entity having joint control over the ul!lmate holding company 
DLF Limit<d 

c) Fellow subsidiary company 
DLF Power & Services Limited 
DLF Assets Limited 
PAliwal Real Es!Bte Limited 
DLF P1omen1de Limited 

d) SubJidi■ ry of enlily having Joint control over the ultimate holding company/ holding company 
Lodhi Prope11y Company Limited 
DLF Propei1y Developers Li1ni1cd (fonnerly DLF Emporia Restaurants L1mi1ed) 
Riveria Comme1cial Developer.; Limited 

e) Enterprises under the control or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) or entities having joint control over the holding company or their relatives al any time 
during the year 

Rod Retail Private Limited (rill May 24, 2022) 
DLF folUldalion 
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DU" [01porio Llmiled 
'.'itow 10 t.be ftu11111dal .ttatemeals (or tllt par Kded March ll.2023 
~,t.U WHnUnD U1 t ~ u-1,l1.rJS olhawiu ,ri;illll,J_ 

.iiil 11~ ~llil~J.tt&.J,.._l'!l_a_t;danii •,u.rc. c,,uri~~ ou1 '~1U!_~II1.tC'd 9_1U1.in duriu_l._tht }t.U::. 
Des<riplloa Ullim■le Holdine Company 

1\.1111'\-lJ Miu-ll 
1fl m RC"nul lttco·IM. 

DU P1onnn. OC!\ ie1.1wwn._1JlJU(i!d 
Ri..J l.=QII '1ntse Lm11c:d . 
Sinia-lt1colDl'. 
DLF "°"-'f "' S.n icd lJn111«1 
.DU' ""''""' lku-loooc, l.Jurn<J -
Rod a.u.1 Pri,:ue Uuulol . 
Olhu•Ptf"•Ub.lk UltWDi; 
ou· ;>ron.m• I><\"""- 1,u.,c1 . 
lll.l' ,>u1"'11!:l1!,. l.1mll'1J 
Dh-fllmKI lnt'fHtllt. I 
0 1.f ,ID<b.l,,.N\al 
1"5ffllHJ u11nua1hm dm.no 
DLF PIU!l<Jl\ Oc,donffi l.llndcJ . 
t..,;lln l'wllelll C:00111:Ufl U11111..J . 
R.hai2 C.omnw102l O.,,\dool:D. Uuv.~ . . 
l1n,on, 11 UI\ .,.-cowt~d 
DLF Pro~ D01 do°"" Linlol<d . 
f.o.i P,,WI ~"' •I• Loffllltd 
folruwa:t: 1.0ti.l WI linandal IUl_b1fil¥0iC'lli.UI~ 1U 
) Ll i'rnn.11h Di."'cf6""""-Llt11Llm 
:-.,,oj Rt!:WI Pm ~lC! L111ulld 
l alCll'rtlt.l]mlk 

JLF Antll l,,1u1,d . 
::ILf C-.bcr <'.It• llt?lck>t.<n um,..i =.34 LUI .jj 
Cos< .r eltdrldfy, liea1luc, ,tAtllatloa and air 
ui:ndltlunlna.tsprwa. 
DU ] 'O\\tl t.. s.,.,..,. lunlloNl . 
l:hwa-. .1.u.ana.arn Ctmr-ta 
01.f l.urull•l 
B"ok 1tu.au,w.1u: mc-~t'd 
lllf lJoJJtJ -((Uvrn1e Muanw.tce.ttln.n IJY.lca..d fo1d, 
DLf t'•l!cl 01\ Dae...,..• UuuL.J 4-167.I? ~i!.711 ,., 
f•dHrr u.W11 lcn.:111Kf' C'At~ 
DLfJlol'HU ~ Si!nlCCS LtllJJH:d . 
Ad'l'C:11hcmm1 and pQbJidrJ 
DLf l'oMI ~ s,,,,, .. t.u,,.,.,; 
lvJ.iUf:l1Jt.tauw1 MTOC1I ch:iin!n 
OU l'te~" &S<,,,_ Umin:<I 
CiRapolUC 
Dl.f Ft.uldolion 
raJr , ~.uul,t,oo 1Wn on lll\'DUUdHI 
DU' ..._,.,.umi...r 

' hli"'ol ii.cal &1110 um...S 
L~I\U U;iJwl 1hufor, the )·o .r 
DI ~ C'l bo Cio O..Jtl.;,- l.111u1,'II 2(1.UOUOO 
Dlf M>ci. l.1uulcd 
LO!IA n-Ml1f dudta the , e.14r 
DI f c•,t.,,, r;:111 Dl,\olo- Un•ldl 16.<MJIII v.suu.oo 
DLF....,.11 t...ru1.,,J . 
Cautclladon of•1!..1uil1.-,ha.ru tnf'll!r ualt .f f l 
ll.LthtMOll Pllrl. Pt"""'" ~1-""""'II ~- L,mu,J 
wue oJ <11ul1< >luu"' t...ru ou1• 411 
OU c~t<rCit\ Do, daaltn Lun1Lni l41JI 

Holding Company 

Mar-ll ~, ... :s 
m rll 

. 
-

-
. . 

. 

. 

. 

. 
. . . 

. 

. 

. -

. 

271.~X 

No>h:: lb: uansacuons nnh rda1ed partie5 are made on tenns equi,a.lent to lhose thal pre,ail in arms length tranucuons 

Entity ha\'ingjolnt C'oncrol over Ftll°"'" subsidia.17 companlet 
rbe holding company 

l\li1t,,U M.ar-"U ,\lar-11 Mar•ll 
, , 1 lfl !ti m 

. UX:11 11-0 , ... . 

-

fl~ 

0..7 U.~i 

. 

. 

- l,11S,,5 llll! . . 

Ol,Jl.01 ,•JI Vl 

ll~ 

. QI Ill 

. . 
. 1.563..10 I.J-0_47 

o.rti . 
. II.JI VI Kl 

. 818.-16 S7!.US 
11.180.00 200.uu 

. 
15.SIIO.OO 

7.lOU.00 

-
~/,t.U...,_ JA,,;J'-

1~{~1 
~u~~ ~ 

Subsidi,.ry or ~utilJ' haml1 Jolin 1\-ry managerial pen;onnel (KMPJ ·ro·1:d 
conlrol over the holding/uhimalt- or enlerprises under the tontrol 

bold.in& compauy or KI\U' or eurities heving join I 
conrral Ol'er tbe boldinc company 

Ot' 1hrir rcl.10,u "' any chm! 
durine lhcyear 

'111.-.:U 1\1.:sl•"' " Mar•U Mw•,'1 Mu"°ll M1t•ll 
Ill ,o "' m it, It] _ 

119.2a ;,1 t ? lll>.Jl l~ i; . - 2n.1M ll~IMM lU.IJ u..1•J X-• 

w .. 11 l~H,t;. 6J.Sli >!Ha\ f,J_&(j "\1 '111.J 
11111 1·, ,,1 

J 
L24 ?~ :!:l.a ! !! l ·-- ----

h ,JI 

' n.,.- 111,7 

fl.S I l•JUI . ~.51 Jl) ,hC• 
, . 16 1.1 • 
1151 

0.3 1 

I 9.~l t1s: ,.u l:.l'i! . . 120 . I~" 

6..G& a tfJ "'" " ... , 
. J 3 N ~ 3. 7•, 
I 

.1 1.wus 1:! u? .. .Ull..11> I. 111 ◄~ 

fil• .o1 .-,,,,,. 

- \l)t\ 

. •ISU! 

. . 4A6?.'11 -l? 77 1 ·~ 

. •~:<.-lU I •4'H 

U~'10 . 

8 1,ll 'Jl Kl 

l"'!All 111'1 19-1.tiV •1'N 

- >--
lla.-10 --nt~ . 11.180,00 ll1l)lllf -.. :ill"l!/UfU 

I 

l6.50U.IIU ,,iJ•Hkl 

,,,, - ......... 
/ nr. I( J 

" . ~~1( 
/ V -- < '- .. . I •. , / ·,-:....."' - 2-11 l l 

. I -; 

~

' ~ 

}-!o----
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llt.F Empo,io l.iau1ed 
Notes lo fbe rmandal ,raremeots Jor1he year ended March J1, 2023 
(,-ttlumuuntsln rlacsI IUllrmlJlhcn~"'!!sllllelJJ 

fill!_~ lutii al }'n.r , nd 
Description Ultim11e Holding Company 

~1.ltr-'?J ~t4t-,,., 

m ('I 
~ccu,u, dooClllG a<«Ul«I 
l>LF PrO))dfl) Do\oloocn Llm,1..t 
1uxl Rd,.111 Pm ate Luru~ -
P<l'uttdl11«1m• 
DU P11>1>"'~ a.., du""I> Lumlw 
1-Jitd' Rr:1111 Pr"~• t ~noicd -
tt tailrl'U'(l\'D~ 
DLF ,_ ll<.,'Olo""" l..initllll 
" ""ilow\PmOIOt.nu""' . 
DLF Po~ill ct S.S.IC<S Li!Dl14'd 

l>LF Promenade Lmllu:d -bU'(,oc, c," Dc1.C..pcu l.wula! 8.JU 
Adno« fro·m C u ll&UtlC':f) 

DL"'F Power & San 1ca Ltmnid . 
Tr"AIJ1 run·ahle 
Dl.1 l'o,,•, , 111. Sen,,., umJlcd 
DJ...F Pt~I\ Oc\clol)da: U,1i1h.'-d 

\ d1J110cr 101UDDJicn 

'Dl.l 'P'o,u~r &; Sen 1a,» Lmolad 
lnVUlrntnU 
lll..F.w""·La1111•'\1 . . 
l'lll11ol R<OI ESIII# lJIIUICd 
1...,.... 
DLF . .....u Uou1cd 
DU C,betC1h. Dc\•111u.P6!lt. l.JnliJ~ 16,..5l1J uu 
lntcm, • crrurd 11a loan 
OU -'1Jlk:J> L101i1, d . 
DLF C,i>or Ci11 D,n doo«• Lmuldd t110uJJ 
Caroan1e ,.uannlti! l!iwo 
DLF Cit"' C'n• Do, do"""' Lanllo4 Jl.30J.26 42.771 15 
~C•Jlllrll 
OLP c,w CII\ Dlhdo""" L,11111..t oll,4.5l •<><,. 

Holdlng CoD1pany 

~1 .... ll Mlf.,~ ,,, (') 

. 

. 

-

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

Entity having Joinl co111rol over fellow subsidlllry companies 
lbe holdin& company 

M.,_ll Mat-.ll Mal'-ll f\,far-.?2 
(fl m m (II 

- -

-. 

. . 
lf,G1 . 30 ~1 . . . 

. VJ.l 

l<WS I . . . . 
119.51 

11 13:Z.09 IU.3<JJU 
76.505.00 65.325 OU 

. 10860.00 l.2...56n l,o 

. 1586M V27 HI . . 
. 

. 
' -

Sub,idlary of enlily huln1 jalnl Key mana&et'ffll pe1nnotl CIJ;.Ml•1 To11I I control ower lhe boldinaJuUim111e or e11te1•prisn under the co11trol 
holding company o( KMP of endliH h■Ying join I I (OGll'OI our lhe halding COUlp■ny 

or their relari\lC!S ul any tin_. 

1 
dwin& the year 

~1.1.1'23 M;r.,, \1, r-,.lJ. .~.,~ur.:?l i'tl•t -:U \ 11,1.1,l! 
m m ,,~ m ,,, lt l 

101.00 m .n 107.09 '11ti : 
47 (d - .l~ 

Ul7 Koltl .2.071 :<-l1' 

-
16.4J 

·~ 37 16.-U ~ 
17 3(\ - 11 }fr . t,,.1JI . ., I t ., .. ,. 

.J ., &.10 -I 
I I ,.u 

. lu•"'J . , I(, 711 1, }11 

·-
119.51 

. 11.IJ:Z.09 h•.lt1i•Ll ·-. - 76.503.Ui> •L\. Ji!..• l~J -
. . 20Jl6D.D<l ~ . . 111 ,q••nU 

1.586,69 ·.i.! - 'Iii . •I - 11101131 ~ 
I I - .j . J8.30J.26 4?.1711 1 
I 

~ .j I 464.51 
In respecl of loan Laken b) DLF ()·her Cily Oc,·elopers Limued from lhe bani,; outslllOdirll: balance or,\hich is it 38.303 26 IKL lheCompan)' creah1d an equilBble mor1i1a~ on DLF Emporio mall owned b) ii along \\ith chuge on recei,ablcs of the SOid ma.JI Funhcr the Compan~ also pro,1ded corpor:nt guarontct 10 lhe ban~ for lhe said loan 

(11u1 spcu:c ha." h•en 1m~n11tJOOlly lefl h/,uJk) 
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DLF Emporio Limitod 
Notos to tho nn•ncial stntomenls for the yeur ended .\II arch JI, 202J 
(.-l/l 11n1<11111ts /11 r /11cs, 11nle.i:.· ,11/ienvi.,e .,111/erl) 

Ill During the culTent year, the Company has charged the Common Area Maintenance r'CAM"I revenue (included under the head "Revem,e fiom 
Operations") fiom tenants 011 provisional basis. based 011 management's estimate of co,t mcmred However. posr the yeor--end. the Conrpa11y will obtain 
an independent pllfty certilieate of actual expt:nditure 111cuned towards maintenance charges for the year ended March 31 , 2023 n,e management 
believes that no material adjustments will arise in CA M revenue which will affect the current years financial statements 

~ t Pursuant to resolution passed by Board of Dilecto,s of the Compnny m their mcetrng held on February 25. 2020, and in accorda11ce wnh provrs,ons of 
Sections 230 to 232 and other relevant applicable provisions of the Compauies Act, 20 lJ and the mies made thereunder, Richmond Pork Property 
Management Services Limited l"Rrchmond" or ·•transferor company") filed a Scheme of Amalgama11011 r'Scherne") with the Compauy before the 
Hon 'ble National Company Law Tribunal. Chandigarh bench I 'NCL T" I The appointed date as per the scheme of arnalgamauon is April I, 2019 

During the previous year. Hon'ble NCL T vide order dated March 01. 1022 (certified copy received 011 M•1ch 14, 20221 had approved the above 
Scheme 
The above acq11isrtro11 by the Company was assessed as "Asset Acqu1srtron" m accordance with prov1sio11s of lud AS 103. ·Busmes.s Combinations" and 
accordmgly. rhe cost of the group was allocated to the individual identifiable assets and l1abilit1es of R1cl11nond on the basis of thei, fair value on the 
dare ofacquisrr,on. re. March 24. 2022 which was as follows: 

Fairvalu~ 
Particulan recognized •• on 

acquisition date 
!Jivc:stmcnc m CQuilv shares 9s.300 ~o 
INon-cum,nl tM aSS\llS <n,,) 1.55 
T, ,nlu 11!\lervn~li::1 30 32 
Cash and cash equivalents 648 
Other current assets 0.04 
Total Asut, (A) 9S,JJ8.79 
Current bonuwings 12.$60_00 
Trad.t oovubles 0.0.4 
Odrcr flmmcinl lfnt.illu1tt 907.99 
Liabilities for current tax 3 02 
Other current lrnbfllllej 10.70 
Retained eamillRS (1 0.722 121 
Total Lia bilities •nd nesenres (8 1 2,7S9.6J 
Net QSSersl llia bllhies IIJld rCRncs) assumed 

92,579.16 (C=A-B) 
Cancellarion of investtnents by Richmond in die 
Company with share capital ( Equity share capital 

92577 57 of ?27158 lacs and securities pn:mium of 
f'.?450.:?5 lacs) issued by the Comp,my (D) 
::mare capi1u1 ,ssuea to sharenoraer or K1cnmona 

24121 "''. 
Caoilal reserve ll'=C-0-E) (239,62) 

•The Company h.:id Issued 24.12,117 equity shares to DLF Cyber City Developers Limited "DCCDL • in lieu of existing shares held by DCCDL in 
Richmond as p..--r ilre Fair exchan~e ratio computed by external valuer. 

TI1e above mentioned accounting treahnent is in accordance with the Scheme and in accordance with the accounting standards specified under Section 
133 of the Companies Act. 20lJ read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from rime 10 time) 

42 Other statutory information 
il n1e ompany dries 1101 have any Bena mi property, where any proceeding !ms b<.'Cn initiated or p1:11dmg against the Company for holding any Benami 
ptOpl!Ily under the Bc11ami Transactions (Prohibition) Acr. 1988 (45 of l 988) and mies made the«under 

1il The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 
iii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet 10 be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period 
iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Cryplo currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year 
v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds ro any other person or entity. including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the 
understanding that the Intermediary shall: 
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalfofthe Company (Ultimate 
Beneficiaries) or 
(b) provide any llU8I11ntee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 
vi)The Company has not received any fund from any person{s) or entity(ies). including foreign enrirres (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether 
recorded in writing or olherwise) rhal the Group shall: 
[UJ direcrly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities id~nlified 111 any manner whatsoever by or on ~half of the Funding Party (Ultimate 
Bcndiciarlesl or 
(b) provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf oflhe Ultimate Beneficiaries, 
vii) TI1e Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in tl1e books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income 
diu in~ tho yow irr lh• ta• •sse.sment~ under the Income-lax Act, I% I (such a&, ~enrch or iurvcy or ony other relevant provisions of lhc 11100111.,..1•., Act, 1961) 




